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VISION: Tobethe numberone Igdg_ing"'co_mpainy./ in the world.

For more than 76 years, Marriott has earned a reputation for delivering the best service with
the best people. That's an imperative that never changes, and a strategy that has served us well
in good times and bad. We are an-industry leader because we're never satisfied, we're always
looking for ways to improve, and we strive tirelessly forexcellence. We proudly serve guests

in nearly 70 countries, with a lodging portfolio that includes more than 2,700 hotel, resort and
timeshare properties, as well as corporate housing apartments, across 18 distinctive brands.
ABOVE: Overlooking the legendary Copacabana Beach, the JW Marriott Hotel Rio de Janeiro in Brazil offers superb accommodations
near top fashion, entertainment and business addresses. FRONT AND BACK COVER: Nestled amidst 500 acres of beautifully landscaped

grounds in the heart of Orlando, Florida, Marriott’s Grande Lakes resort features JW Marriott and Ritz-Carlton hotels, state-of-the-art
meeting and convention space, a championship golf course and a luxurious world-class spa.



Our Company

Superior Business Model

Our business model fuels our success,
whatever the economic climate. Now, the
same business model that fortified us in
the downturn will be the key to greater
achievements in a strengthening economy.
In 2004, we are well positioned to pursue
business opportunities, open exciting new
hotels, increase earnings per share and

maximize profitability.

MARRIOTT INTERNATIONAL, INC.
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Our Products

Recognized Quality

Travelers around the world choose
Marriott brands by a wide margin.
Owners and franchisees also choose us
because our brands are preferred by
customers and deliver superior profitability.
Of the more than 31,000 new rooms we
added in 2003, approximately one-third
were conversions from competitor brands

to Marriott brands.

(8 in millions, except per share amounts)

Revenues!. . . ...

Lodging financial results

Operating NCoOME . . . . o\ttt ettt et

Income from continuing operations, net of taxes

Diluted earnings per share'

! From continuing operations.
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Our People

Spirit To Serve

Marriott associates are the best in the
business. Every day, they serve our

guests with skill, enthusiasm and pride,
and their hard work made our success in
2003 possible. We are dedicated to taking
care of our associates by championing
diversity and leadership, fostering personal
and professional growth, and creating a

great workplace.

2003 2002 Change
$8,415 7%
$ 707 -1%
$ 321 17%
$ 439 8%
$ 1.74 11%
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Luxury Lodging

With more than 50 luxury hotels
and resorts worldwide, The Ritz-
Carlton Hotel Company offers
business and leisure travelers
traditional and contemporary

hotel designs, world-class spas and
championship golf. A winner of the
Malcolm Baldrige National Quality
Award and the J.D. Power and
Associates North America Hotel
Guest Satisfaction Index Study*",
the prestigious Ritz-Carlton name
has become synonymous with the
finest personal service.

THE RiTZ-CARLTON®

HoteL Company, LL.C.

Bulgari Hotels & Resorts,
developed in partnership with
jewelry and luxury goods designer
Bulgari S.p.A., is a new luxury
hotel brand designed for guests
who seek a distinctive, sophisticated
setting in major cities and exclusive
destinations. Each property
features Bulgari’s striking
contemporary style and offers the

»  finest Italian-influenced cuisine.
B V L G A R I The first property, the Bulgari

HOTELS & RESORTSY Hotel Milano, will open in 2004,

followed by the Bulgari Resort
Bali, which is expected to open
in late 2005.
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JW Marriott Hotels & Resorts is a
distinctive collection of Marriott’s
most luxurious hotels providing the
attentive personal service, elegant
accommodations and extensive
array of amenities required by

: 11 ' Tl 1'f the world’s most discriminating
. ; = travelers. There are more than

- | n-!ll | | 30 JW Marriott Hotels & Resorts
properties located in key business

and leisure destinations throughout
the world.
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HOTELS & RESORTS




Full-Service Lodging

Select-Service Lodging

J\arriott.

HOTELS & RESORTS

J\arriott.

RESORTS

RENAISSANCE.

HOTELS & RESORTS

\arnott.

CONFERENCE CENTERS

Marriott Hotels & Resorts is our
flagship brand of more than 450
upscale hotels, including over

40 Marriott Resort locations and

14 Marriott Conference Centers. The
brand is trusted by guests worldwide
to enhance their travel or meeting
experience with knowledgeable
service, genuine care and gracious
attention to detail. Our thoughtfully
designed hotels feature spacious and
comfortable guest rooms, pools and
fitness centers; superb restaurants
and room service; and The Room
That Works®, business centers, and
Concierge and Executive levels.

Marriott Resorts is our award-
winning portfolio of distinctive
properties in the world’s most
sought-after destinations. Designed
for travelers seeking memorable
and rewarding experiences,
Marriott Resort locations offer
attentive service and exceptional
amenities, with many featuring
world-class golf and spa facilities.

Renaissance Hotels & Resorts is

an upscale, distinctive full-service
hotel brand designed to enhance the
enjoyment of our guests. Renaissance
guests can expect stylish environments;
crisp, attentive service; and well-
defined, quality dining experiences.
Enjoy the warm, inviting ambience
of Renaissance in more than 125
properties worldwide.

Marriott Conference Centers provides
the special expertise, environment,
technology and on-site recreation to
ensure creative, effective meetings for
small- to mid-size groups. Positioned
close to cities, with distraction-free
surroundings, Marriott Conference
Centers sets the stage for “The
Ultimate Meeting Experience.”

J\arnott
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SPRINGHILL

SUITES ®
J\arnott

FAIRFIELD
INN

®

Jarnott

@RAMADA

INTERNATIONAL ® HOTELS & RESORTS

Courtyard by Marriott is the
preeminent brand in the upper-
moderate price sector, with over 600
hotels in 14 countries and territories.
Courtyard’s customer-focused design
provides guests with a consistently
high-quality experience. Business
travelers know they can expect a
great guest room that combines
comfort and functionality, including
free high-speed internet access.
Business and leisure travelers count
on Courtyard to put them in control
so they can leave feeling restored.

SpringHill Suites by Marriott,

one of the fastest growing all-suite
brands, offers upper-moderate
priced suites that are spacious
enough for working, relaxing and
preparing light meals. SpringHill
Suites combines Marriott hospitality
with a complimentary continental
breakfast and a suite that is up to
25 percent larger than a traditional
hotel room. Suites feature a pantry
area with a small refrigerator, sink
and microwave, and free high-speed
internet access. There are over

100 locations across North America.

Fairfield Inn by Marriott is Marriott’s
most affordable welcome, offering
superior value for both business

and leisure travel. In addition to
clean and comfortable guest rooms,
Fairfield Inn provides free local calls,
swimming pool and complimentary
continental breakfast. Fairfield Inn &
Suites properties also include uniquely
designed suites, an exercise room
and enhanced amenities. There are
more than 500 Fairfield Inn and
Fairfield Inn & Suites locations across
the United States.

Ramada International Hotels &
Resorts provides value-sensitive
guests with the best room experience
in the moderate tier. Ramada hotels
deliver more services, value and
locations to meet guest expectations.
This promise applies to all brand
extensions — from superior Plazas

to relaxing Resorts and boutique
Encores. There are approximately
200 Ramada International hotels in
23 countries and territories outside
of the United States.



Extended-Stay and Corporate Lodging

Ownership Resorts

7N

Residence

Inn ®

J\arnott
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TownePlace
SUITES ®

A\arnott

MARRIOTT

EXECUTIVE APARTMENTS.

O \arriott
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EXECUSTAY

Residence Inn by Marriott, North
America’s leading extended-stay
brand, allows guests on long-term
trips to maintain a balance between
work and life while away from
home. Spacious suites with full
kitchens and separate areas for
sleeping, working, relaxing and
cating offer homelike comfort

and functionality. A friendly staff,
complimentary hot breakfast and
evening social hours add to the
sense of community. Residence Inn
now offers free high-speed internet
access in all guest rooms. There are
nearly 450 Residence Inn hotels
across North America.

TownePlace Suites by Marriott offers
an affordable home for moderate
tier travelers on extended-stay trips.
‘With comfortable, casual suites and
24-hour staff, TownePlace Suites
provides a neighborhood-style living
experience at an exceptional value.
A fully equipped kitchen, ample
work area, separate voice and data
lines, and free high-speed internet
access in guest rooms help guests
balance work and personal time. An
exercise room, pool and barbecue
offer guests a chance to relax. There
are more than 100 TownePlace
Suites locations in the United States.

Marriott Executive Apartments is
the ideal answer when international
travel takes guests away from home
a little bit longer. Offering studios to
three-bedroom apartments, Marriott
Executive Apartments delivers

the comforts of home plus the
indulgence of quality hotel services,
including around-the-clock staffing,
housekeeping and laundry service.
The living areas offer fully equipped
kitchens and dedicated work and
relaxation areas. There are nine
Marriott Executive Apartments in
key international gateway cities.

Marriott ExecuStay, a leading U.S.
corporate apartment provider, offers
temporary housing to travelers who
prefer the spaciousness and privacy
of an apartment. ExecuStay finds
the right solution for each traveler
and delivers a fully furnished,
accessorized apartment with as

little as one day’s notice. Residents
enjoy biweekly housekeeping and
exceptional 24-hour customer
service. ExecuStay apartments are
located in most major cities across
the United States.

“ »
J\arriott. a
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INTERNATIONAL

Horizons

by N\arnott. vacation Club
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GRAND RESIDENCE
CLUB"

THE RiTZ-CARLTON CLUB®

Marriott Vacation Club International
is a recognized worldwide leader

in the vacation ownership industry.
MVCI offers a lifetime of memorable
vacations, with flexible options
including trade for Marriott
Rewards points or exchange to
other destinations around the
globe. Spacious one-, two- and
three-bedroom villas provide
separate living and dining areas,
master bedroom with whirlpool
tub, private balcony, full kitchen
and washer/dryer. There are 41
MVCI resorts in the United States,
the Caribbean, Europe and Asia.

Horizons by Marriott Vacation Club
offers flexible vacation ownership at
an affordable price. Each functional,
family-friendly, two-bedroom villa
accommodates up to eight guests
and includes many comforts of
home, such as roomy living and
dining areas, private balcony, full
kitchen and washer/dryer. Horizons
resorts are thoughtfully designed

to be active vacation communities,
with themed amenities and activities
for all ages. There are two Horizons
locations: Orlando, Florida, and
Branson, Missouri.

Marriott Grand Residence Club
combines the advantages of second
home ownership with the services
and amenities of a fine resort, as
well as the benefits of exchange

to worldwide destinations.
Locations include South Lake
Tahoe, California, and London’s
Mayfair district.

The Ritz-Carlton Club is a luxury-
tier, fractional ownership real estate
product combining the benefits of
second home ownership with the
personalized services and amenities
that are hallmarks of The Ritz-
Carlton Hotel Company. Designed
as a private club, members may
stay at their home Club or choose
from other Ritz-Carlton Clubs

in ski, golf and beach destinations.
There are four Ritz-Carlton Club
resorts: St. Thomas, U.S. Virgin
Islands; Aspen and Bachelor Gulch,
Colorado; and Jupiter, Florida.



Positioned for Growth

The last several years have marked one of the most difficult times in the history of the lodging industry. However,

we have risen to the challenge and proved the strength and resilience of our business model, our brands, our

leaders and, above all, our associates. We have emerged a focused lodging management, franchising and timeshare

company, and we have never been better prepared to seize the unique opportunities available to us.

A five-star “corporate
resort," the JW Marriott
Hotel Cairo in Egypt is
moments from the city’s
business district and
historic attractions.

GROWING OUR

business

We gain preference for our brands
by being where our customers
need us to be. While Marriott

w hotels are found in all corners of LEVERAGING

the world, we continue to expand tec h no I Ogy

into major gateway cities, resort Whether reserving a room on

destinations and suburban ) ) .
marriott.com or staying connected via

markets. Our brands comprise . ) )
high-speed or wireless internet access,

only 1 percent of the lodging travelers can rely on Marriott to provide

market outside the United the best technology solutions. And with
“Marriott's Look No Further™ Best Rate

Guarantee,” customers don't have to

States, so there is tremendous
opportunity for growth.

shop around to be sure they have the

best publicly available rate.

[6] Marriott International, Inc.



OUR SPIRIT TO

serve

We pride ourselves on our ability
to meet the changing expecta-
tions and tastes of our guests. We
strive to make their every stay a
pleasurable, relaxing and memo-
rable experience by consistently
delivering only the very best:
exciting and innovative restau-
rants, luxurious spas, state-of-the-

art sports facilities, world-class INVESTING IN OUR

future

We have earned a reputation

golf and incomparable service.

for quality, service and innova-

tion because we make it our

business to find out what our

customers really want. We use

that knowledge to enhance our
brands, working with our owners

and franchisees.

Curved surfaces, rich woods,
designer fabrics and superior
lighting are highlights of the
new Courtyard by Marriott
guest rooms.

With nearly 20 million
members, Marriott Rewards®
is the world's most popular
frequent stay program.

[7] Marriott International, Inc.

Guests enjoy fine dining and
personalized service at The
Ritz-Carlton Golf & Spa Resort
Rose Hall, Jamaica.

463,400
490,600

435,900

355,900
390,500

99 00 o1 02 03

LODGING ROOMS
We're continuing to grow aggres-
sively. We added 91,000* new
rooms between 2001 and 2003,
and we expect to open another
90,000-95,000* by the end of
2006. The rapid pace of conver-
sions is a testament to the power

of our brands.

*excluding Marriott Vacation Club International
and Ramada International



To Our Shareholders

This historically challenging time in the lodging industry has

truly served to demonstrate Marriott International’s resilience, the
strength of our business model, superior brands, strong management
team and dedicated associates. We are optimistic about a stronger
business climate in 2004. And with the final disposition of our
senior living and distribution services businesses in 2003, we look
forward to operating as a focused lodging management, franchise

and timeshare company for the first time in our 76-year history.

2003 PERFORMANCE SUMMARY

Our financial condition remains strong.
Despite weak demand in 2003, income
from continuing operations increased

8 percent to $476 million, and fully
diluted earnings per share from continu-
ing operations increased 11 percent to
$1.94 per share, including $0.39 from our
synthetic fuel investment. Our balance
sheet remains strong as we sold $1.1 bil-
lion in assets during the year, including
$163 million of hotels and land, $162 mil-
lion in hotel project loans and $450 mil-
lion of senior living assets. We also
lowered our investment spending in 2003
and reduced total debt by more than
$300 million to $1.5 billion.

Dividends paid on our common stock
totaled $68 million, we invested $373 mil-
lion in share repurchases, and our stock
price rose 35 percent during the year.

REVPAR (Revenue Per Available
Room) at comparable Marriott-operated
U.S. hotels declined modestly in 2003,
reflecting continued weak business travel
demand. Leisure travel, while a smaller
component of our business, strengthened
during the year, particularly on weekends
and at our upscale resorts and spas.
Despite the difficult times, our brands
enjoyed two-to-one customer preference
and substantial REVPAR premiums
over our next closest competitor.

Our growth goals remained on
target. We added 185 new hotels and
timeshare units with over 31,000 new
rooms in 2003, driving our system to

over 2,700 hotels and more than

490,000 rooms worldwide. Approximately

one-third of this room expansion — an
all-time high — was from conversions

to Marriott brands by owners and fran-
chisees of competitor brands. They were
drawn to our ability to attract customers
and improve hotel profitability. In addi-
tion, approximately 35 percent of new
rooms added were outside the U.S.,
expanding our brands worldwide.

We increased productivity at the
hotel level in 2003 with the continued
development and utilization of our
sophisticated employee scheduling sys-

tem and by leveraging our buying power

and systems. We reduced hours worked
per occupied room in 2003 by 10 per-
cent over 2000 levels at participating
hotels. We reduced food and supply
costs through greater participation in
programs offered by Avendra, a pro-
curement services company, and our
enhanced accounts payable systems.
And, by pooling risk among our man-
aged hotels, we continued to purchase
insurance at a lower cost than any
property could purchase on a stand-
alone basis.

By the end of 2003, we had high-
speed internet access available in 1,400
hotels, far outpacing our competition.
According to our research, access to
high-speed internet service is a critical
element in choosing a hotel today. By
the end of 2004, we expect well over
2,000 of our hotels worldwide to

[8] Marriott International, Inc.

J.W. MARRIOTT, JR.
CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER (RIGHT)
WILLIAM J. SHAW
PRESIDENT AND CHIEF OPERATING OFFICER (LEFT)

offer this service. We also introduced
wireless internet access in lobbies,
meeting rooms and public spaces in
over 900 hotels throughout the U.S.
during the year.

Customers now find it easier to con-
nect with us. Every month, more than
five million visitors use our marriott.com
web site to shop and to book their reser-
vations. We booked revenues of $1.4 bil-
lion on marriott.com, up more than
25 percent over the prior year.

We celebrated Marriott Rewards’
20th anniversary in 2003. With almost
20 million members, it is the largest and
longest continually operating guest loy-
alty program in the industry.

Today, we are the only major lodging
company with a truly worldwide rate



guarantee across all reservation channels,
stating that our guests will get the lowest
available rate when booking through any
Marriott channel. If they find a lower
publicly available rate through any other
source, including a Marriott channel or a
third party, online or off, we will match
the lower rate and discount it an addi-
tional 25 percent each night of their stay.

Owner and franchisee satisfaction was
a priority in 2003. We used sophisticated
technology to make information about
our expenses and programs more under-
standable and easier to obtain. We also
restructured our service team to provide
more personalized service and ensure our
people understand, anticipate and meet
our owners’ and franchisees’ needs.

WHAT'’S AHEAD

The lodging industry, particularly the
business travel segment, typically lags an
economic recovery. There are signs of
broad economic improvement, and
leisure demand has strengthened, but
business customers have yet to fully
resume traveling.

While systemwide North American
REVPAR declined 1.3 percent in 2003,
we expect 2004 occupancy levels and
average daily room rates at our hotels to
improve slightly. We expect REVPAR in
2004 to be 3 percent to 4 percent over
2003 levels. We are also likely to see a
modest improvement in productivity,
which should help offset higher expected
labor, healthcare and insurance costs.

THE OPPORTUNITY

With the recovery of every previous

tough economic downturn in the lodging

industry, Marriott has enjoyed significant

growth and prosperity. We're ready for

this recovery and see great opportunity to

expand globally, increase fee income, and

improve our return on invested capital.

= Income and Revenue: In the coming
years, we have substantial opportunity
to increase management and franchise
fee revenues. Base management and
franchise fees should grow as occu-
pancy and room rates increase and as
we add new units. In the longer term,
we expect incentive fees to increase
as hotels become more prosperous.

Global Expansion: Our long-term
goal is to have a presence in every
gateway city, major resort destination
and high-demand suburban market
around the world. We are well on
our way to achieving that goal but
still have plenty of room for growth.
In the United States, we manage or
franchise approximately 8 percent

of the total lodging market; outside
the United States, we represent only
1 percent of the industry. We expect
to add 25,000-30,000 rooms in 2004,
one-quarter of which will be outside
of the United States. Our growth
includes such properties as the leg-
endary Grosvenor House hotel in
London, which we began operating in
2004 and will brand as a JW Marriott
hotel after extensive renovations. Our
current pipeline of new hotels (either
under construction or under contract)
totals 50,000 rooms. Excluding
Marriott Vacation Club International
and Ramada International, we expect
to add 90,000-95,000 rooms to our
global system by the end of 2006.
Brand Preference and Loyalty:
Expanded distribution increases cus-
tomer loyalty and owner preference
for our hotels as we are able to

meet our customers’ needs wherever
they travel. For example, following
its dramatic increase in distribution
in key global markets over the past
three years, The Ritz-Carlton brand
emerged with the highest rating for
luxury hotels in the J.D. Power and
Associates North America Guest
Satisfaction Index Study*™.

Leisure Segment Growth: Our leisure
business did well last year and contin-
ues to grow. We opened several new
luxury hotels in 2003, including the
1,500-room Grande Lakes Resort in
Orlando, encompassing The Ritz-
Carlton and JW Marriott hotels; the
historic Wentworth-by-the-Sea in New
Castle, New Hampshire; and the
Jordan Valley Marriott Resort & Spa on
the Red Sea. With more than 90 world-
class resorts featuring state-of-the-art
spas, sports facilities and cuisine, we
are well-positioned to lead this segment
and generate considerable revenue.

[9] Marriott International, Inc.

OUR DIVERSE WORKPLACE

By being a great place to work and an
industry leader, Marriott International
is able to attract and retain a diverse,

world-class team of associates.

* AMERICA’S MOST ADMIRED COMPANIES
Fortune (most admired company in

the lodging industry since 2000)

* 100 BEST COMPANIES TO WORK FOR
Fortune (seventh consecutive year)

% TOP 50 COMPANIES FOR MINORITIES

Fortune (sixth consecutive year)

* TOP 50 COMPANIES FOR DIVERSITY
DuversityInc

% THE 50 BEST COMPANIES FOR LATINAS TO
WORK FOR IN THE U.S.

Latina Style (since 1999)

% NUMBER ONE IN THE ANNUAL LODGING
INDUSTRY REPORT CARD

The National Association for the
Advancement of Colored People
(fifth year)

% 100 BEST COMPANIES FOR WORKING
MOTHERS

Working Mother (13th year)



= Timeshare Business: Our distinctive
timeshare brands appeal to leisure
customers. Six new timeshare resorts
opened in 2003, and we plan to open

three additional resorts in 2004:

Canyon Villas in Arizona, Marriott’s

Ocean Watch in Myrtle Beach, South

Carolina, and Marriott’s Aruba Surf

Club. We have made investments in

our systems to reap higher profits as

the economy recovers, and we expect
to thrive with our one-on-one market-
ing approach, especially in the new

“Do Not Call List” environment. Our

team was selected as the best sales

organization in America by the

American Business Awards in 2003.

We are also focused on improving
returns on invested capital for our
timeshare business. We plan to reduce
the capital intensity of the business by
increasing the number of joint venture
partners for new resort developments
and by broadening our marketing and
sales agreements to include resorts
developed by others. Timeshare
returns on capital should also improve
as our existing resorts mature, moder-
ating their development costs and
accelerating their sales pace.

We are highly selective about our lodg-
ing and timeshare expansion strategy and
where we develop real estate. If we choose
to buy or build properties, we intend to
minimize capital investment and recycle
capital by quickly selling the properties,
subject to an operating agreement. Conse-
quently, our substantial cash flow should
be available for additional expansion, divi-
dends or share repurchases.

We intend to maintain low capital
intensity and remain a solid investment-
grade company. We have established a
long-term target of 20 percent return on
invested capital, and we expect to hit that
target by 2007, earlier if the industry
recovery is more robust.

MARRIOTT’S PEOPLE: OUR MOST
IMPORTANT ASSET

More than any other factor, Marriott’s
people were responsible for our success
in 2003, and they are the most important
investment we make. We have the most
skilled and loyal associates in the business.

We continue to invest in training, and we
have among the highest associate satisfac-
tion ratings in the industry. Over 90 per-
cent of our associates said they were
“proud to work for Marriott” in our
2003 Associate Opinion Survey. We were
again recognized by Fortune, Latina Style
and Working Mother magazines as a great
place to work, and organizations such

as the National Association for the
Advancement of Colored People noted
our progress in expanding diversity. We
believe in the importance of taking care
of our associates so they’ll feel good
about their jobs and take special care

of our guests.

LOOKING FORWARD

2003 marks the end of three consecutive
years of challenges for the lodging
industry and our company. But the real
story will be what our business model
enables us to accomplish in the future.
In 2004, assuming continued economic
strength in the U.S. and REVPAR
growth of 3 percent to 4 percent, we
believe fully diluted earnings per share
from continuing operations could
increase to between $2.06 and $2.16 per
share, including approximately $0.40
from our synthetic fuel investment. And
we expect to continue to aggressively
repurchase our stock.

In 2003, we crossed the bridge from a
difficult to an improving economy. Now,
the same business model that protected
us in the downturn has positioned us to
prosper as business begins to return. We
look forward to seeing how far these
opportunities take us.

G a7

J-W. MARRIOTT, JR.
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

WILLIAM J. SHAW
President and Chief Operating Officer

March 1, 2004

[10] Marriott International, Inc.

OUR COMMUNITIES

Marriott helps the communities we
call home through our “Spirit To
Serve Our Communities” initiative.

Among our many efforts in 2003:

* We expanded our partnership with
Habitat for Humanity International
by sponsoring and building afford-
able housing in Australia, Costa
Rica, Guatemala, Indonesia,
Mexico and the United States.

* QOur annual donation to the
American Red Cross Disaster Relief
Fund helped provide assistance to
communities around the world
affected by disaster, including the
Southern California wildfires and

Hurricane Isabel.

* Continuing our tradition of sup-
porting Children’s Miracle Network
hospitals, associate fundraising and
company donations exceeded
$3.5 million.

* Marriott associates worldwide par-
ticipated in the annual “Spirit To
Serve Our Communities Day” and
donated thousands of hours to
support their hometowns.



Management'’s Discussion and Analysis of

Financial Condition and Results of Operations

BUSINESS AND OVERVIEW

We are a worldwide operator and franchisor of 2,718 hotels and
related facilities. Our operations are grouped into five business
segments: Full-Service Lodging, Select-Service Lodging, Extended-
Stay Lodging, Timeshare and Synthetic Fuel. In our Lodging busi-
ness, we operate, develop and franchise under 14 separate brand
names in 68 countries. We also operate and develop Marriott
timeshare properties under four separate brand names.

We earn base, incentive and franchise fees based upon the
terms of our management and franchise agreements. Revenues
are also generated from the following sources associated with our
timeshare business: (1) selling timeshare intervals, (2) operating
the resorts, and (3) financing customer purchases of timesharing
intervals. In addition, we earn revenues and generate tax credits
from our synthetic fuel joint venture.

We evaluate the performance of our segments based primar-
ily on the results of the segment without allocating corporate
expenses, interest expense, and interest income. With the excep-
tion of our synthetic fuel segment, we do not allocate income
taxes to our segments. As timeshare note sales are an integral
part of the timeshare business, we include timeshare note sale
gains in our timeshare segment results and we allocate other
gains as well as equity income (losses) from our joint ventures
to each of our segments.

CONSOLIDATED RESULTS

The following discussion presents an analysis of results
of our operations for fiscal years ended January 2, 2004,
January 3, 2003, and December 28, 2001.

Continuing Operations

Revenues
(8 in millions) 2003 2002 2001
Full-Service $5,876  $5,508  $5,260
Select-Service 1,000 967 864
Extended-Stay 557 600 635
Timeshare 1,279 1,147 1,009
Total lodging 8,712 8,222 7,768
Synthetic fuel 302 193 -
$9,014 $8.415 $7,768

Income from Continuing Operations

(8 in millions) 2003 2002 2001
Full-Service $407  $397  $294
Select-Service 99 130 145
Extended-Stay 47 3) 55
Timeshare 149 183 147

Total lodging financial results (pretax) 702 707 641
Synthetic fuel (after tax) 96 74 -
Unallocated corporate expenses (132) (126) (157)
Interest income, provision for loan losses

and interest expense 12 24 (63)
Income taxes (excluding synthetic fuel) (202) (240) (152)

$476  $439  $269

2003 COMPARED TO 2002

Revenues from continuing operations increased 7 percent to

$9 billion in 2003 reflecting revenue from new lodging proper-
ties, partially offset by lower demand for hotel rooms and conse-
quently lower fees to us.

Income from continuing operations, net of taxes, increased 8 per-
cent to $476 million, and diluted earnings per share from continuing
operations advanced 11 percent to $1.94. Synthetic fuel operations
contributed $96 million in 2003 compared to $74 million in 2002.
Our lodging financial results declined $5 million, to $702 million
in 2003. The comparisons from 2002 benefit from the $50 million
pretax charge to write-down acquisition goodwill for ExecuStay in
2002, offset by the $44 million pretax gain on the sale of our invest-
ment in Interval International in 2002, and further benefit from our
2003 receipt of a $36 million insurance settlement for lost man-
agement fees associated with the New York Marriott World Trade
Center hotel, which was destroyed in the 2001 terrorist attacks.

2002 COMPARED TO 2001
Revenues from continuing operations increased 8 percent to
$8.4 billion in 2002 reflecting the sales of our new synthetic fuel
operation and revenue from new lodging properties, partially off-
set by a slowdown in the economy and the resulting decline in
lodging demand.

Income from continuing operations, net of taxes, increased
63 percent to $439 million, and diluted earnings per share from
continuing operations advanced 66 percent to $1.74. Income
from continuing operations reflected $74 million associated with
our synthetic fuel operation. The results also reflected a $44 mil-
lion pretax 2002 gain on the sale of our investment in Interval
International, offset by the $50 million pretax 2002 charge to
write-down the acquisition goodwill for ExecuStay and the
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decreased 2002 demand for hotel rooms and executive apart-
ments. The comparisons to 2001 include the impact of the

$204 million pretax restructuring and other charges that we
recorded against continuing operations in the fourth quarter of 2001.

Operating Income

2003 COMPARED TO 2002

Operating income increased 17 percent to $377 million in 2003.
The favorable comparisons to 2002 include the impact of the
$50 million write-down of goodwill recorded in 2002 associated
with our ExecuStay business, the 2003 receipt of $36 million of
insurance proceeds associated with lost management fees result-
ing from the destruction of the New York Marriott World Trade
Center hotel and lower 2003 operating losses from our synthetic
fuel operation. In 2003, our synthetic fuel business generated
operating losses of $104 million, compared to $134 million in
2002. Operating income in 2003 was hurt by $53 million of
lower incentive fees, which resulted from the weak operating
environment in domestic lodging.

2002 COMPARED TO 2001

Operating income decreased 24 percent to $321 million largely as
a result of the $50 million write-down of goodwill associated with
our ExecuStay business. In addition, we recorded $134 million of
operating losses associated with our synthetic fuel operation, which
commenced operations in 2002. The comparisons to 2001 are
impacted by the $155 million restructuring and other charges
recorded against operating income in 2001 and a $40 million reduc-
tion in incentive fees resulting from the decline in hotel demand.

Marriott Lodging

We consider lodging revenues and lodging financial results to be
meaningful indicators of our performance because they measure
our growth in profitability as a lodging company and enable
mvestors to compare the sales and results of our lodging opera-
tions to those of other lodging companies.

2003 COMPARED TO 2002

Lodging, which includes our Full-Service, Select-Service,
Extended-Stay, and Timeshare segments, reported financial
results of $702 million in 2003, compared to $707 million in
2002 and revenues of $8,712 million in 2003, a 6 percent
increase, compared to revenues of $8,222 million in 2002. The
lodging revenue and financial results include the receipt of a
$36 million insurance settlement for lost revenues associated
with the New York Marriott World Trade Center hotel. Our
revenues from base management fees totaled $388 million, an
increase of 2 percent, reflecting 3 percent growth in the number
of managed rooms and a 1.9 percent decline in REVPAR for
our North American managed hotels. Incentive management
fees were $109 million, a decline of 33 percent, reflecting the
decline in REVPAR as well as lower property level house
profit. House profit margins declined 2.7 percentage points,
largely due to lower average room rates, higher wages, insur-
ance and utility costs, and lower telephone profits, offset by
continued productivity improvements. Franchise fees totaled
$245 million, an increase of 6 percent. The comparison to 2002
includes the impact of the $50 million pretax write-down of
ExecuStay goodwill recorded in 2002, partially offset by a

$44 million pretax gain related to the sale of our investment
in Interval International.

2002 COMPARED TO 2001

Lodging financial results increased 10 percent to $707 million,

and revenues increased 6 percent to $8,222 million. Results
reflected a $44 million pretax gain related to the sale of our invest-
ment in Interval International, a timeshare exchange company,
and increased revenue associated with new properties partially
offset by lower fees due to the decline in demand for hotel rooms.
Our revenues from base management fees totaled $379 million,
an increase of 2 percent. Franchise fees totaled $232 million, an
increase of 5 percent and incentive management fees were

$162 million, a decline of 20 percent. The $50 million write-down
of acquisition goodwill associated with our executive housing busi-
ness, ExecuStay, reduced lodging results in 2002. The 2002 com-
parisons are also impacted by $115 million in restructuring costs
and other charges recorded against lodging results in 2001.

Lodging Development

Marriott Lodging opened 185 properties totaling over 31,000

rooms across its brands in 2003, while 24 hotels (approximately

4,000 rooms) exited the system. Highlights of the year included:

= We converted 72 properties (10,050 rooms), or 32 percent of
our total room additions for the year from other brands.

= We opened approximately 35 percent of new rooms outside
the United States.

= We added 97 properties (11,900 rooms) to our Select-Service
and Extended-Stay brands.

= We opened six new Marriott Vacation Club International
properties in Florida, France, Hawaii, London, South

Carolina and Spain.

At year-end 2003, we had over 300 hotel properties and approxi-
mately 50,000 rooms under construction, awaiting conversion, or
approved for development. We expect to open over 175 hotels and
timeshare resorts (approximately 25,000 to 30,000 rooms) in 2004.
These growth plans are subject to numerous risks and uncertain-
ties, many of which are outside our control. See “Forward-Looking
Statements” and “Liquidity and Capital Resources.”

REVPAR

We consider Revenue per Available Room (REVPAR) to be a
meaningful indicator of our performance because it measures
the period-over-period change in room revenues for comparable
properties. We calculate REVPAR by dividing room sales for
comparable properties by room nights available to guests for
the period. REVPAR may not be comparable to similarly titled
measures such as revenues.

The following table shows occupancy, average daily rate
and REVPAR for each of our comparable principal established
brands. We have not presented statistics for company-operated
North American Fairfield Inn and SpringHill Suites properties
here (or in the comparable information for the prior years pre-
sented later in this report) because we operate only a small
number of properties as both these brands are predominantly
franchised and such information would not be meaningful for
those brands (identified as “nm” in the tables). Systemwide statis-
tics include data from our franchised properties, in addition to
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our owned, leased and managed properties. Systemwide Inter-
national statistics by region are based on comparable worldwide
units, excluding North America.

Comparable Comparable
Company-Operated Systemwide
North American North American
Properties Properties
Change Change
2003 vs. 2002 2003 vs. 2002

MARRIOTT HOTELS & RESORTS®

Occupancy 69.3% -0.5% pts. 67.6% —0.4% pts.
Average daily rate $135.42 -2.1% $128.53 -1.8%
REVPAR $ 93.81 -2.8% $ 86.87 -2.4%
THE RITZ-CARLTON®

Occupancy 65.7% 1.1% pts. 65.7% 1.1% pts.
Average daily rate $231.12 -0.8% $231.12 -0.8%
REVPAR $151.85 1.0% $151.85 1.0%
RENAISSANCE HOTELS & RESORTS

Occupancy 65.8% 0.9% pts. 65.3% 1.5% pts.
Average daily rate $132.12 -1.8% $123.97 -2.2%
REVPAR $ 86.99 —0.4% $ 80.92 0.1%
COMPOSITE - FULL-SERVICE®

Occupancy 68.4% -0.1% pts. 67.1% 0.0% pts.
Average daily rate $144.17 -1.6% $134.92 -1.6%
REVPAR $ 98.65 -1.8% $ 90.57 ~1.6%
COURTYARD

Occupancy 67.6% ~1.0% pts. 68.5% -0.6% pts.
Average daily rate $ 93.16 -1.2% $ 92.90 -0.6%
REVPAR $ 63.01 =2.7% $ 63.65 -1.4%
FAIRFIELD INN

Occupancy nm nm 64.1% -0.3% pts.
Average daily rate nm nm $ 64.28 0.2%
REVPAR nm nm $ 41.22 —0.4%
SPRINGHILL SUITES

Occupancy nm nm 68.4% 1.3% pts.
Average daily rate nm nm $ 80.38 1.3%
REVPAR nm nm $ 54.94 3.2%
RESIDENCE INN

Occupancy 77.0%  ~0.3% pts. 76.2% 0.2% pts.
Average daily rate $ 94.94 -1.9% $ 93.85 -1.4%
REVPAR $ 73.09 -2.3% $ 71.47 -1.1%
TOWNEPLACE SUITES

Occupancy 70.3% -2.0% pts. 70.9% 0.0% pts.
Average daily rate $ 63.24 1.8% $ 63.34 -0.2%
REVPAR $ 44.48 -1.0% $ 44.89 —0.1%
COMPOSITE - SELECT-SERVICE & EXTENDED-STAY®

Occupancy 70.0% -0.8% pts. 69.2% -0.2% pts.
Average daily rate $ 90.98 -1.1% $ 83.70 -0.6%
REVPAR $ 63.64 -2.2% $ 57.95 ~0.8%
COMPOSITE - ALL®

Occupancy 69.0%  ~0.4% pts. 68.3%  ~0.1% pts.
Average daily rate $124.45 -1.4% $105.86 -1.1%
REVPAR $ 85.85 -1.9% $ 72.31 -1.3%

! Marriott Hotels & Resorts includes our JW Marriott Hotels & Resorts brand.

2 Statistics for The Ritz-Carlton are for January through December.

? Full-Service composite statistics include the Marriott Hotels & Resorts, Renaissance Hotels & Resorts and
The Ritz-Carlton brands.

* Select-Service and Extended-Stay composite statistics include the Courtyard, Residence Inn, TownePlace Suites,
Fairfield Inn and SpringHill Suites brands.

5 Composite — All statistics include the Marriott Hotels & Resorts, Renaissance Holels & Resorts, The Ritz-
Carlton, Courtyard, Residence Inn, TownePlace Suites, Futrfield Inn and SpringHill Suites brands.

For North American properties (except for The Ritz-Carlton),
the occupancy, average daily rate and REVPAR statistics used
throughout this report for the fiscal year ended January 2, 2004,
include the period from January 4, 2003, through January 2,
2004, while the statistics for the fiscal year ended January 3,
2003, include the period from December 29, 2001, through
January 3, 2003.

The following table shows occupancy, average daily rate and
REVPAR for international properties by region.

Comparable Comparable
Company-Operated Systemwide
International International
Properties® Properties®
Year ended Year ended
December 31, Change December 31, Change
2003 vs. 2002 2003 vs. 2002
CARIBBEAN & LATIN AMERICA
Occupancy 67.5% 4.2% pts. 65.3% 3.8% pts.
Average daily rate  $126.45 2.7% $121.64 2.2%
REVPAR $ 85.32 9.5% $ 79.49 8.5%
CONTINENTAL EUROPE
Occupancy 67.9% 0.3% pts. 64.9% 0.3% pts.
Average daily rate  $117.79 -5.4% $119.40 -4.0%
REVPAR $ 79.92 -4.9% $ 77.50 -3.5%
UNITED KINGDOM
Occupancy 76.6% =0.7% pts. 72.3% -0.8% pts.
Average daily rate  $148.14 -1.5% $125.44 -3.2%
REVPAR $113.48 -2.4% $ 9071 -4.2%
MIDDLE EAST & AFRICA
Occupancy 66.5% 0.4% pts. 64.3% 0.6% pts.
Average daily rate  $ 71.39 14.9% $ 71.58 14.6%
REVPAR $ 47.49 15.7% $ 46.00 15.8%
ASIA PACIFIC®
Occupancy 65.5% -6.7% pts. 67.8% -5.3% pts.
Average daily rate  $ 85.25 -1.4% $ 93.13 0.5%
REVPAR $ 55.86 -10.5% $ 63.10 -6.8%
COMPOSITE INTERNATIONAL®
Occupancy 67.6% -1.3% pts. 67.5%  -1.0% pts.
Average daily rate  $109.62 0.1% $112.14 0.0%
REVPAR $ 74.14 -1.8% $ 75.69 -1.5%

! The comparison to 2002 is on a currency neutral basis and includes results_for January through December.
? Excludes Hawait.

3 Includes Hawari.
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The following table shows occupancy, average daily rate and
REVPAR for each of our principal established brands for 2002
compared to 2001.

Comparable Comparable
Company-Operated Systemwide
North American North American
Properties Properties
Change Change
2002 vs. 2001 2002 vs. 2001
MARRIOTT HOTELS & RESORTS®
Occupancy 70.1% 0.0% pts. 68.4% 0.3% pts.
Average daily rate $137.28 -4.8% $130.65 -4.8%
REVPAR $ 96.25 —4.8% $ 89.30 —4.4%
THE RITZ-CARLTON®
Occupancy 66.1% 0.6% pts. 66.1% 0.6% pts.
Average daily rate $233.40 -5.20% $233.40 -5.2%
REVPAR $154.21 —4.3% $154.21 —4.3%
RENAISSANCE HOTELS & RESORTS
Occupancy 65.1% -0.9% pts. 63.6% -0.5% pts.
Average daily rate $131.77 -3.2% $123.43 -3.0%
REVPAR $ 85.80 -4.5% $ 78.56 -3.8%
COMPOSITE - FULL-SERVICE®
Occupancy 69.1% -0.1% pts. 67.6% 0.2% pts.
Average daily rate $144.07 -4.7% $135.57 -4.6%
REVPAR $ 99.51 —4.8% $ 91.59 —4.4%
COURTYARD
Occupancy 69.1%  -2.1% pts. 69.7%  ~1.2% pts.
Average daily rate $ 94.47 -5.1% $ 93.41 -4.3%
REVPAR $ 65.26 -7.9% $ 65.13 -5.9%
FAIRFIELD INN
Occupancy nm nm 66.0% -0.3% pts.
Average daily rate nm nm $ 64.48 -0.8%
REVPAR nm nm $ 42.59 -1.3%
SPRINGHILL SUITES
Occupancy nm nm 68.2% 1.6% pts.
Average daily rate nm nm $ 77.96 -2.5%
REVPAR nm nm $ 53.14 -0.2%
RESIDENCE INN
Occupancy 76.9%  ~0.6% pts. 76.8%  ~0.5% pts.
Average daily rate $ 97.36 -7.2% $ 95.68 -5.6%
REVPAR $ 74.87 -7.9% $ 73.47 -6.2%
TOWNEPLACE SUITES
Occupancy 73.4% 0.2% pts. 72.4% 2.0% pts.
Average daily rate $ 62.78 —6.8% $ 63.28 —4.9%
REVPAR $ 46.08 -6.5% $ 45.80 -2.3%
COMPOSITE - SELECT-SERVICE & EXTENDED-STAY®
Occupancy 71.5% -1.5% pts. 70.8% -0.5% pts.
Average daily rate $ 93.16 -5.9% $ 85.92 -4.3%
REVPAR $ 66.65 -7.8% $ 60.86 -5.0%
COMPOSITE - ALL®
Occupancy 70.1%  ~0.6% pts. 69.4%  ~0.2% pts.
Average daily rate $123.43 -4.9% $107.58 -4.4%
REVPAR $ 86.47 -5.7% $ 74.62 —4.7%

! Marriott Hotels & Resorts includes our JW Marriott Hotels & Resorts brand.

2 Statistics for The Ritz-Carlton are for January through December.

? Full-Service composite statistics include the Marriott Hotels & Resorts, Renaissance Hotels & Resorts and
The Ritz-Carlton brands.

* Select-Service and Extended-Stay composite statistics include the Courtyard, Residence Inn, TownePlace Suites,
Fairfield Inn and SpringHill Suites brands.

5 Composite — All statistics include the Marriott Hotels & Resorts, Renaissance Holels & Resorts, The Ritz-
Carlton, Courtyard, Residence Inn, TownePlace Suites, Futrfield Inn and SpringHill Suites brands.

For North American properties (except for The Ritz-Carlton),
the occupancy, average daily rate and REVPAR statistics used

throughout this report for the fiscal year ended January 3, 2003
include the period from December 29, 2001, through January 3,
2003, while the statistics for the fiscal year ended December 28,
2001, include the period from December 30, 2000, through
December 28, 2001.

Occupancy, average daily rate, and REVPAR by region for
international properties are shown in the following table.

Comparable Comparable
Company-Operated Systemwide
International International
Properties® Properties®
Year ended Year ended
December 31, Change December 31, Change
2002 vs. 2001 2002 vs. 2001
CARIBBEAN & LATIN AMERICA
Occupancy 66.3% -0.6% pts. 63.5% -1.0% pts.
Average daily rate  $129.33 -1.2% $124.25 -2.6%
REVPAR $ 85.73 -2.2% $ 78.87 -4.1%
CONTINENTAL EUROPE
Occupancy 67.1% 0.4% pts. 64.2% -0.3% pts.
Average daily rate  $106.82 -2.3% $108.58 -1.0%
REVPAR $ 7171 ~-1.7% $ 69.67 -1.4%
UNITED KINGDOM
Occupancy 77.3% 2.9% pts. 74.0% 1.6% pts.
Average daily rate ~ $139.98 -0.3% $123.59 -3.0%
REVPAR $107.50 3.6% $ 91.43 -0.8%
MIDDLE EAST & AFRICA
Occupancy 66.2% 5.4% pts. 66.2% 5.4% pts.
Average daily rate  § 72.84 -6.3% $ 72.84 ~6.3%
REVPAR $ 48.19 2.0% $ 48.19 2.0%
ASIA PACIFIC®
Occupancy 72.8% 4.8% pts. 73.5% 4.2% pts.
Average daily rate  $ 81.13 -0.8% $ 87.35 -0.7%
REVPAR $ 59.08 6.2% $ 64.17 5.2%
COMPOSITE INTERNATIONAL®
Occupancy 69.7% 2.9% pts. 69.1% 2.3% pts.
Average daily rate ~ $101.81 -2.0% $105.22 -2.2%
REVPAR $ 70.95 2.2% $ 72.71 1.1%

! The comparison to 2001 is on a currency neutral basis and includes results_for January through December.
? Excludes Hawait.

3 Includes Hawari.

Full-Service Lodging

Annual Change
($ in millions) 2003 2002 2001 2003/2002 2002/2001
Revenues $5,876 $5,508 $5,260 7% 5%
Segment results  $ 407 $ 397 $§ 294 3% 35%

2003 COMPARED TO 2002

Full-Service Lodging, which includes the Marriott Hotels &»
Resorts, The Ritz-Carlton, Renaissance Hotels & Resorts, Ramada
International and Bulgari Hotels & Resorts brands, had revenues

of $5,876 million, a 7 percent increase over the prior year, and
segment results of $407 million compared to $397 million in
2002. The 3 percent increase in results includes the $36 million
insurance payment received for lost management fees in connec-
tion with the loss of the New York Marriott World Trade Center
hotel in the September 11, 2001, terrorist attacks. The 2003
results also reflect an $18 million increase in base management
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and franchise fees, largely due to the growth in the number of
rooms. Across our Full-Service Lodging segment, we added 88
hotels (18,000 rooms) and deflagged 15 hotels (3,000 rooms). We
typically earn incentive fees only after a managed hotel achieves
a minimum level of owner profitability. As a result, lower rev-
enue and lower property-level margins have reduced the number
of hotels from which we earn incentive management fees. As a
result, full-service incentive fees declined $41 million in 2003.

REVPAR for Full-Service Lodging North American system-
wide hotels declined 1.6 percent to $90.57. Occupancy for these
hotels was flat at 67.1 percent, while average room rates declined
1.6 percent to $134.92. REVPAR for our International system-
wide hotels declined 1.5 percent. Occupancy declined 1 percentage
point, while average room rates remained flat at $112.14.

Our international operations increased 9 percent to $102 mil-
lion, reflecting $21 million of gains associated with the sale of
our interests in three joint ventures and favorable foreign
exchange rates, partially offset by an $8 million charge for guar-
antee fundings related to a hotel in Istanbul, a $7 million charge
to write-down our investment in a joint venture that sold a hotel
at a loss in January 2004, and the impact of the war and Severe
Acute Respiratory Syndrome (SARS) on international travel
earlier in the year.

2002 COMPARED TO 2001

Full-Service Lodging had revenues of $5,508 million, a

5 percent increase over the prior year, and segment results of
$397 million, an increase of 35 percent. The comparison reflects
$84 million of restructuring and other charges recorded in the
fourth quarter of 2001. The 2002 results also reflect a $9 million
increase in base management fees, largely due to the growth

in the number of managed rooms. Franchise fees decreased

$6 million primarily as a result of the transfer of the Ramada
license agreements to the joint venture formed with Cendant
Corporation. In 2001, we had franchise revenue associated with
the Ramada license agreements, while in 2002 we had equity in
earnings of the joint venture. The impact of the change in the
Ramada structure was partially offset by higher franchise fees
resulting from the growth in the number of franchised rooms.
Across our Full-Service Lodging segment, we added 60 hotels
(15,000 rooms) and deflagged 12 hotels (3,300 rooms). Full-
Service incentive fees were down $27 million due to the decline
in the number of properties from which we earn incentive fees.

REVPAR for Full-Service Lodging North American sys-
temwide hotels declined 4.4 percent. Occupancy for these hotels
was up slightly to 67.6 percent, while the average room rates
declined 4.6 percent.

International lodging reported an increase in the results of
operations, reflecting the impact of the increase in travel in Asia
and the United Kingdom. The favorable comparison also reflects
the restructuring and other charges recorded in the fourth quar-
ter of 2001.

Select-Service Lodging

Annual Change
(8 in millions) 2003 2002 2001 2003/2002  2002/2001
Revenues $1,000 $967 $864 3% 1200
Segment results  $ 99 $130  $145 -249% -10%

2003 COMPARED TO 2002
Select-Service Lodging, which includes the Courtyard, Fuirfield
Inn and SpringHill Suites brands, had revenues of $1 billion, a
3 percent increase over the prior year, and segment results of
$99 million compared to $130 million in 2002. The $31 million
decrease reflects the impact of a $12 million reduction in base
and incentive management fees, partially offset by a $3 million
increase in franchise fees. The results also include $12 million of
higher equity losses primarily from our Courtyard joint venture,
formed in 2000, which owns 120 Courtyard hotels.

In 2003, across our Select-Service Lodging segment, we added
66 hotels (8,000 rooms) and deflagged four hotels (700 rooms).
Over 90 percent of the gross room additions were franchised.

2002 COMPARED TO 2001
Select-Service Lodging had revenues of $967 million, a
12 percent increase compared to the prior year, and segment
results of $130 million compared to $145 million in 2002. The
comparison to 2001 reflects $13 million of restructuring and other
charges recorded in the fourth quarter of 2001. The $15 million
decrease in segment results reflects the impact of an $11 million
reduction in base and incentive management fees, offset by a
$13 million increase in franchise fees. The results also include
$8 million of equity losses in 2002 compared to earnings of $5 mil-
lion in 2001, primarily related to our Courtyard joint ventures.
In 2002, across our Select-Service Lodging segment, we
added 80 hotels (10,600 rooms) and deflagged nine hotels
(1,100 rooms). Eighty-two percent of the gross room additions
were franchised.

Extended-Stay Lodging

Annual Change
(8 in millions) 2003 2002 2001 2003/2002 2002/2001
Revenues $557  $600  $635 =7% -6%
Segmentresults $47 $ (3) $ 55 nm nm

nm = not meaningful

2003 COMPARED TO 2002

Extended-Stay Lodging, which includes the Residence Inn,
TownePlace Suites, Marriott Executive Apartments and Marriott
ExecuSitay brands, had revenues of $557 million, a decrease of
7 percent, and segment results of $47 million compared to an
operating loss of $3 million in 2002. In 2002, we recorded a
$50 million charge to write-down the acquisition goodwill for
ExecuStay. Our base and incentive management fees decreased
$7 million and our franchise fees increased $6 million.

In 2003 we added 31 hotels (3,800 rooms) across our
Extended-Stay Lodging segment. Over 80 percent of the gross
room additions were franchised. We deflagged one property
(100 rooms), and we decreased our ExecuStay brand by 1,300 units.

2002 COMPARED TO 2001

Extended-Stay Lodging had revenues of $600 million, a
decrease of 6 percent, and an operating loss of $3 million com-
pared to income of $55 million in 2001. In 2002, we recorded a
$50 million charge to write-down the acquisition goodwill for
ExecuStay. Our base and incentive management fees decreased
$7 million, and our franchise fees increased $5 million. The com-
parisons to 2001 were also impacted by $16 million of restructur-
ing and other charges recorded in the fourth quarter of 2001.
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In 2002, across our Extended-Stay Lodging segment, we added
44 hotels (5,400 rooms). Over 80 percent of the gross room addi-
tions were franchised. We deflagged three properties (300 rooms),
and we decreased our ExecuStay brand by 1,800 units.

Timeshare

Annual Change
(8 in millions) 2003 2002 2001 2003/2002  2002/2001
Revenues $1,279 $1,147 $1,009 12% 14%

Segment results ~ $ 149 $ 183 $ 147 -19% 24%

2003 COMPARED TO 2002

The results of our Timeshare segment (Marriott Vacation Club
International, Horizons by Marriott Vacation Club International, The Ritz-
Carlion Club and Marriott Grand Residence Club) decreased 19 percent
to $149 million, while revenues increased 12 percent. Note sale
gains in 2003 were $64 million compared to $60 million in 2002.
Contract sales increased 16 percent and were strong at timeshare
resorts in the Caribbean, Hawaii, and South Carolina and soft
m Lake Tahoe, California; Orlando, Florida; and Williamsburg,
Virginia. The comparison to 2002 reflects the $44 million gain
in 2002 on the sale of our investment in Interval International.
Timeshare revenue of $1,279 million and $1,147 million, in 2003
and 2002, respectively, include interval sales, base management
fees and cost reimbursements.
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2002 COMPARED TO 2001
The financial results of our Timeshare segment increased
24 percent to $183 million, reflecting a 14 percent increase in
revenues, note sale gains in 2002 of $60 million compared to
$40 million in 2001, and a gain of $44 million related to the sale
of our investment in Interval International, partially offset by
lower development profits and higher depreciation on systems
for customer support. Contract sales increased 5 percent.

Synthetic Fuel

In October 2001, we acquired four coal-based synthetic fuel
production facilities (the “Facilities”) for $46 million in cash.
The synthetic fuel produced at the Facilities through 2007 quali-
fies for tax credits based on Section 29 of the Internal Revenue
Code (credits are not available for fuel produced after 2007).
We began operating these Facilities in the first quarter of 2002.
Operation of the Facilities, together with the benefit arising from
the tax credits, has been, and we expect will continue to be,
significantly accretive to our net income. Our synthetic fuel

operation generated net income of $96 million and $74 million
in fiscal years 2003 and 2002, respectively. Although the
Facilities produce significant losses, these losses are more than
offset by the tax credits generated under Section 29, which
reduce our income tax expense. In fiscal year 2003, our syn-
thetic fuel operation reflected sales of $302 million, equity
income of $10 million and an operating loss of $104 million,
resulting in a tax benefit of $245 million, including tax credits of
$211 million, offset by minority interest expense of $55 million.

On June 21, 2003, we completed the previously announced
sale of an approximately 50 percent ownership interest in the
synthetic fuel operation. We received cash and promissory notes
totaling $25 million at closing, and we are receiving additional
profits that we expect will continue over the life of the venture
based on the actual amount of tax credits allocated to the pur-
chaser. We earned $56 million of such additional profits in 2003.
Certain post-closing conditions, including our receipt of satisfac-
tory private letter rulings from the Internal Revenue Service,
were satisfied during the fourth quarter. Those rulings confirm,
among other things, both that the process used by our synthetic
fuel operations produces a “qualified fuel” as required by Section
29 of the Internal Revenue Code and the validity of the joint
venture ownership structure with the 50 percent purchaser. After
reviewing the private letter rulings, the purchaser informed us in
writing that it would not be exercising a one-time “put option,”
which would potentially have allowed it to return its ownership
interest to us if satisfactory rulings had not been obtained prior
to December 15, 2003.

As a result of the put option, we continued to consolidate the
synthetic fuel operation through November 6, 2003. Effective
November 7, 2003, because the put option was voided, we
account for the synthetic fuel joint venture using the equity
method of accounting. The $24 million of additional profits we
received from the joint venture partner beginning November 7,
2003, along with our share of the equity in losses of the syn-
thetic fuel joint venture, are reflected in the income statement
under Equity in earnings/(losses) from synthetic fuel. The addi-
tional profits earned prior to November 7, 2003, along with the
revenue generated from the previously consolidated synthetic
fuel joint venture, are included in synthetic fuel revenue in the
income statement.

‘We will continue to record the benefit of our share of the tax
credits in our financial statements as a reduction of our tax pro-
vision. Going forward, we expect net income will continue to
benefit from our participation in the joint venture because of the
subsequent tax benefits and credits, as well as the earn-out pay-
ments from our venture partner; however, the ultimate impact
will depend on the production levels of the synthetic fuel opera-
tion and is directly tied to the amount of coal produced.

General, Administrative and Other Expenses

2003 COMPARED TO 2002

General, administrative and other expenses increased $13 million
in 2003 to $523 million, reflecting higher litigation expenses
related to two continuing and previously disclosed lawsuits,
partially offset by the impact of the additional week in 2002

(our 2002 fiscal year included 53 weeks compared to 52 weeks
in 2003). The expenses also reflect foreign exchange gains of

$7 million, compared to losses of $6 million in 2002.
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2002 COMPARED TO 2001

General, administrative and other expenses decreased $145 mil-
lion in 2002 to $510 million, primarily reflecting the following:

() 2002 items, including a $9 million reserve recorded in con-
nection with a lawsuit involving the sale of a hotel previously
managed by us, $3 million of higher litigation expenses, and

$9 million of lower expenses associated with our deferred compen-
sation plan; (i) 2001 items, including $155 million of restructuring
costs and other charges recorded in the fourth quarter of 2001
associated with the downturn in the economy and the impact of
the September 11, 2001, attacks, $13 million related to the write-
down of two investments in technology partners; $29 million of
goodwill amortization expense [in accordance with Statement of
Financial Accounting Standards (FAS) No. 142, we ceased amortiz-
ing goodwill in 2002], $11 million in gains from the sale of afford-
able housing investments and the reversal of a $10 million
insurance reserve related to a lawsuit at one of our hotels.

Gains and Other Income

The following table shows our gains and other income for the
fiscal years ended January 2, 2004, January 3, 2003, and
December 28, 2001.

(8 in mallions) 2003 2002 2001
Timeshare note sale gains $ 64 $ 60 $40
Gains on sale of real estate 21 28 38
Gains on sales of three international
joint ventures 21 — -
Gain on sale of investment in
Interval International - 44 -
$106 $132 $78

Interest Expense

2003 COMPARED TO 2002

Interest expense increased $24 million to $110 million reflecting
interest on the mortgage debt assumed in the fourth quarter of
2002 associated with the acquisition of 14 senior living commu-
nities, and lower capitalized interest resulting from fewer projects
under construction, primarily related to our timeshare segment.
In the fourth quarter of 2003, $234 million of senior debt was
repaid. The weighted average interest rate on the repaid debt
was 7 percent.

2002 COMPARED TO 2001

Interest expense decreased $23 million to $86 million, reflecting
the decrease in borrowing and interest rates, partially offset by
lower capitalized interest.

Interest Income and Income Tax

2003 COMPARED TO 2002

Interest income increased $7 million (6 percent) to $129 million.
The provision for loan losses for 2003 was $7 million and
includes $15 million of reserves for loans deemed uncollectible
at six hotels, offset by the reversal of $8 million of reserves no
longer deemed necessary.

Income from continuing operations before income taxes and
minority interest generated a tax benefit of $43 million in 2003,
compared to a tax provision of $32 million in 2002. The differ-
ence is primarily attributable to the impact of our synthetic fuel
operation, which generated a tax benefit and tax credits of

$245 million in 2003, compared to $208 million in 2002.
Excluding the impact of our synthetic fuel operation, our pretax
income was lower in 2003, which also contributed to the favor-
able tax impact.

Our effective tax rate for discontinued operations increased
from 15.7 percent to 39 percent due to the impact of the taxes in
2002 associated with the sale of stock in connection with the dis-
posal of our Senior Living Services business.

2002 COMPARED TO 2001

Interest income increased $28 million to $122 million, before
reflecting reserves of $12 million for loans deemed uncollectible
at four hotels. The increase in interest income was favorably
impacted by amounts recognized that were previously deemed
uncollectible. The comparison to 2001 also reflects a $6 million
charge for expected guarantee fundings recorded against interest
income in the fourth quarter of 2001.

Our effective income tax rate for continuing operations
decreased to approximately 6.8 percent in 2002 from 36.1 per-
cent in 2001, primarily due to the impact of our synthetic fuel
operation which generated a tax benefit and tax credits of
$208 million. Our effective tax rate for discontinued operations
decreased from 35.4 percent to 15.7 percent due to the impact of
the taxes associated with the sale of stock in connection with the
disposal of our Senior Living Services business.

DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

Senior Living Services

In December 2001, management approved and committed to a
plan to exit the companion living concept of senior living serv-
ices and sell the related properties within the next 12 months.
We recorded an impairment charge of $60 million to adjust the
carrying value of the properties to their estimated fair value for
the year ended December 28, 2001. On October 1, 2002, we
completed the sale of these properties for $62 million, which
exceeded our previous estimate of fair value by $11 million. We
included the $11 million gain in discontinued operations for the
year ended January 3, 2003.

In the second quarter of 2002, we sold five senior living com-
munities for $59 million. We ceased operating these communities
under our previously existing long-term management agreements.
‘We accounted for these sales under the full accrual method in
accordance with FAS No. 66. We continue to provide an operat-
ing profit guarantee to the buyer, and fundings under that guar-
antee are applied against the initial deferred gain of $6 million. As
of January 2, 2004, the remaining deferred gain was $3 million.

On December 17, 2002, we sold 12 senior living communities
to CNL for approximately $89 million. We accounted for the sale
under the full accrual method in accordance with FAS No. 66,
and we recorded an after-tax loss of approximately $13 million.
On December 30, 2002, we entered into a definitive agreement
to sell our senior living management business to Sunrise Assisted
Living, Inc. and to sell nine senior living communities to CNL.
We completed the sales to Sunrise and CNL and a related sale
of a parcel of land to Sunrise, in March 2003 for $266 million
and recognized a gain, net of taxes, of $23 million.

On December 30, 2002, we purchased 14 senior living com-
munities from an unrelated owner for approximately $15 million
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in cash, plus the assumption of $227 million in debt. We had
previously agreed to provide a form of credit enhancement on
the outstanding debt related to these communities. Management
approved and committed to a plan to sell these communities
within 12 months. As part of that plan, on March 31, 2003, we
acquired all of the subordinated credit-enhanced mortgage secu-
rities relating to the 14 communities in a transaction in which
we issued $46 million of unsecured Marriott International, Inc.
notes, due April 2004. In the 2003 third quarter, we sold the 14
communities to CNL for approximately $184 million. We pro-
vided a $92 million acquisition loan to CNL in connection with
the sale. Sunrise currently operates and will continue to operate
the 14 communities under long-term management agreements.
We recorded a gain, net of taxes, of $1 million.

For the year ended January 3, 2003, we had recorded an
after-tax charge of $131 million associated with our agreement
to sell our senior living management business. Accordingly, we
report the operating results of our senior living segment in dis-
continued operations during the years ended January 2, 2004,
and January 3, 2003, and the remaining assets and liabilities were
classified as assets held for sale and liabilities of businesses held
for sale, respectively, on the balance sheet at January 3, 2003.

Distribution Services

In the third quarter of 2002, we completed a previously
announced strategic review of our Distribution Services business
and decided to exit that business. We completed that exit during
the fourth quarter of 2002 through a combination of transfer-
ring certain facilities, closing other facilities and other suitable
arrangements. In the year ended January 3, 2003, we recognized
a pretax charge of $65 million in connection with the decision to
exit this business. The charge includes: (1) $15 million for pay-
ments to third parties to subsidize their assumption of, or in
some cases to terminate, existing distribution or warehouse lease
contracts; (2) $9 million for severance costs; (3) $10 million
related to the adjusting of fixed assets to net realizable values;
(4) $2 million related to inventory losses; (5) $15 million for
losses on equipment leases; (6) $10 million for losses on ware-
house leases; and (7) $4 million of other associated charges. For
the year ended January 2, 2004, we incurred exit costs, net of
tax, of $2 million, primarily related to ongoing compensation
costs associated with the wind down. We also reversed $2 mil-
lion, net of tax, for previously estimated exit costs, which we
deemed no longer necessary.

2001 Restructuring Costs and Other Charges

The Company experienced a significant decline in demand for
hotel rooms in the aftermath of the September 11, 2001, attacks
in New York and Washington, D.C., and the subsequent dramatic
downturn in the economy. This decline resulted in reduced man-
agement and franchise fees, cancellation of development projects,
and anticipated losses under guarantees and loans. In 2001, we
responded by implementing certain companywide cost-saving
measures, although we did not significantly change the scope of
our operations. As a result of our restructuring plan, in the fourth

quarter of 2001, we recorded pretax restructuring costs of $62 mil-

lion, including (1) $15 million in severance costs; (2) $19 million
primarily associated with a loss on a sublease of excess space aris-
ing from the reduction in personnel; and (3) $28 million related to

the write-off of capitalized costs relating to development projects
no longer deemed viable. We also incurred $142 million of other
charges including (1) $85 million related to reserves for guarantees
and loan losses; (2) $12 million related to accounts receivable
reserves; (3) $13 million related to the write-down of properties
held for sale; and (4) $32 million related to the impairment of
technology-related investments and other write-offs.

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

We are party to two multicurrency revolving credit agreements
that provide for aggregate borrowings of up to $2 billion, expir-
ing in 2006 ($1.5 billion expiring in July and $500 million expir-
ing in August), which support our commercial paper program
and letters of credit. We entered into the $500 million facility
during the third quarter of 2003, replacing a similar facility that
would have expired in February 2004. At January 2, 2004, we
had no loans outstanding under these facilities. Fluctuations in
the availability of the commercial paper market do not affect our
liquidity because of the flexibility provided by our credit facili-
ties. Borrowings under these facilities bear interest at London
Interbank Offered Rate (LIBOR) plus a spread, based on our
public debt rating. At January 2, 2004, our cash balances com-
bined with our available borrowing capacity under the credit
facilities amounted to approximately $2.1 billion. We consider
these resources, together with cash we expect to generate from
operations, adequate to meet our short-term and long-term lig-
uidity requirements, finance our long-term growth plans, meet
debt service and fulfill other cash requirements. We monitor the
status of the capital markets and regularly evaluate the effect that
changes in capital market conditions may have on our ability to
execute our announced growth plans. We expect that part of our
financing and liquidity needs will continue to be met through
commercial paper borrowings and access to long-term committed
credit facilities. If conditions in the lodging industry deteriorate,
or if disruptions in the commercial paper market take place as
they did in the immediate aftermath of September 11, 2001, we
may be unable to place some or all of our commercial paper on
a temporary or extended basis, and may have to rely more on
borrowings under the credit facilities, which may carry a higher
cost than commercial paper.

Cash from Operations
Cash from operations, depreciation expense and amortization
expense for the last three fiscal years are presented in the follow-

ing table:

(8 in millions) 2003 2002 2001
Cash from operations $421 $516 $403
Depreciation expense 132 145 142
Amortization expense 28 42 80

While our timeshare business generates strong operating cash
flow, the timing of both cash outlays for the acquisition and
development of new resorts and cash received from purchaser
financing affects annual amounts. We include timeshare interval
sales we finance in cash from operations when we collect cash
payments or the notes are sold for cash. The net operating activ-
ity from our timeshare business (which excludes the portion of
net income from our timeshare business, as that number is a
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component of income from continuing operations) is shown in
the following table:

(8 in millions) 2003 2002 2001

Timeshare development, less the

cost of sales $ (94) $(102) $(253)
New timeshare mortgages, net of

collections (284)  (280)  (320)
Note sale gains (64) (60) (40)
Financially reportable sales (in excess of)

less than closed sales @) (13) 53
Note sale proceeds 281 387 199
Net fees received for servicing notes 17 31 26
Other cash inflows (outflows) 37 (26) (23)
Net cash outflows from timeshare activity ~ $(111) $ (63) $(358)

In 2002, other cash flows from operating activities of $223 mil-
lion included an adjustment for $186 million, related to the exit of
our Senior Living Services and Distribution Services businesses,
and an adjustment for $50 million, related to the impairment of
goodwill of our ExecuStay brand.

In 2001, other cash flows from operating activities of $278 mil-
lion included an adjustment for $248 million, related to non-cash
restructuring and other charges.

Earnings before interest expense, income taxes, depreciation
and amortization (EBITDA) was $745 million in 2003, $551 mil-
lion in 2002 and $701 million in 2001. We consider EBITDA to
be an indicator of our operating performance because it can be
used to measure our ability to service debt, fund capital expendi-
tures and expand our business. However, EBITDA is a non-
GAAP financial measure, and is not an alternative to net income,
financial results, or any other operating measure prescribed by
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States.

The reconciliation of net income to EBITDA is as follows:

(8 in millions) 2003 2002 2001
Net income $502  $277  $236
Interest expense 110 86 109
Tax (benefit) provision -

continuing operations (43) 32 152
Tax provision (benefit) —

discontinued operations 16 (31) (18)
Depreciation 132 145 142
Amortization 28 42 80

EBITDA $745  $551  $701

Reducing net income are losses associated with our synthetic
fuel operations of $104 million and $134 million, respectively, for
the years ended January 2, 2004, and January 3, 2003. Also affect-
ing our 2003 net income is equity in earnings from synthetic fuel
of $10 million and minority interest expense of $55 million. The
synthetic fuel operating losses include depreciation expense of $8
million for both the years ended January 2, 2004, and January 3,
2003. There was no loss or depreciation expense associated with
our synthetic fuel operations for the year ended December 28,
2001, since operations did not commence until 2002.

Also included in net income above is income from our dis-
continued Senior Living Services business of $26 million in 2003
and losses of $108 million and $29 million, for 2002 and 2001,
respectively, as well as losses from our discontinued Distribution

Services business of $54 million and $4 million, respectively for
2002 and 2001. There were no losses associated with our Distri-
bution Services business in 2003. Included above is depreciation
and amortization expense related to our discontinued operations
of $37 million and $44 million in 2002 and 2001, respectively.
There was no depreciation or amortization expense for our dis-
continued operations in 2003.

A substantial portion of both our net income and therefore
EBITDA is based on fixed dollar amounts or percentages of
sales. These include lodging base
management fees, franchise fees

o
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strict credit-granting policies,
aggressive collection efforts and
high inventory turnover. We also
have significant borrowing capacity under our revolving credit
facilities should we need additional working capital.

In 2003 we sold $281 million of notes receivable originated
by our timeshare business. We recognized gains on these sales
of $64 million in the year ended January 2, 2004. Our ability to
continue to sell these timeshare notes depends on the continued
ability of the capital markets to provide financing to the special
purpose entities that buy the notes. Also, we might have
increased difficulty or be unable to consummate such sales if the
underlying quality of the notes receivable we originate were to
deteriorate, although we do not expect such a deterioration. In
connection with these timeshare note sales, at January 2, 2004,
we had repurchase obligations of $19 million related to notes
receivable we have sold. We do not expect to incur material
losses in respect of those obligations. We retain interests in the
notes, which are accounted for as residual interests, and in the
year ended January 2, 2004, we received cash flows of $47 mil-
lion from those retained interests. At January 2, 2004, the special
purpose entities that had purchased notes receivable from us had
aggregate assets of $733 million.

Investing Activities Cash Flows

Acquisitions. We continually seek opportunities to enter new
markets, increase market share or broaden service offerings
through acquisitions.

Dispositions. Property sales generated cash proceeds of
$494 million in 2003, $729 million in 2002 and $554 million in
2001. Proceeds in 2003 are net of a $92 million note receivable
and closing costs and other items totaling $25 million. In 2003,
we closed on the sales of three hotels and 23 senior living com-
munities. We continue to operate all of the hotels under long-
term operating agreements.

Capital Expenditures and Other Investments. Capital expen-
ditures of $210 million in 2003, $292 million in 2002 and $560 mil-
lion in 2001 included development and construction of new hotels
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and senior living communities and acquisitions of hotel properties.
Over time, we have sold certain lodging and senior living proper-
ties under development, or to be developed, while continuing to
operate them under long-term agreements. The ability of third-
party purchasers to raise the necessary debt and equity capital
depends in part on the perceived risks inherent in the lodging
industry and other constraints inherent in the capital markets as a
whole. Although we expect to continue to consummate such real
estate sales, if we were unable to do so, our liquidity could decrease
and we could have increased exposure to the operating risks of
owning real estate. We monitor the status of the capital markets,
and regularly evaluate the effect that changes in capital market con-
ditions may have on our ability to execute our announced growth
plans. We also expect to continue to make other investments in
connection with adding units to our lodging business. These invest-
ments include loans and minority equity investments.

A summary of our other investing outflows is shown in the
table below.

(8 in millions) 2003 2002 2001
Equity investments $(22) $26) $ (33
Investment in corporate-owned life insurance ~ (12)  (11) 97)
Other net cash outflows b) (33 (131
Cash proceeds on sale of investment in

Interval International = 63 -
Sale of affordable housing tax

credit investments - - 82
Other investing outflows $39) $ (7)) $(179)

Fluctuations in the values of hotel real estate generally have
little impact on the overall results of our Lodging segments
because (1) we own less than 1 percent of the total number of
hotels that we operate or franchise; (2) management and fran-
chise fees are generally based upon hotel revenues and profits
versus hotel property values; and (3) our management agree-
ments generally do not terminate upon hotel sale.

We have made loans to owners of hotels that we operate or

franchise. We have also made loans to the synthetic fuel joint ven-

ture partner and to the purchaser of our senior living business.
Loans outstanding, excluding timeshare notes, totaled $996 mil-
lion at January 2, 2004, $944 million at January 3, 2003, and
$860 million at December 28, 2001. Unfunded commitments
aggregating $80 million were outstanding at January 2, 2004, of
which we expect to fund $44 million in 2004 and $60 million in
total. We participate in a program with an unaffiliated lender in
which we may partially guarantee loans made to facilitate third-
party ownership of hotels that we operate or franchise.

Cash _from Financing Activities
Debt decreased $319 million in 2003, due to the $200 million
repayment, at maturity, of Series A debt in November 2003
and the net pay down of $161 million of commercial paper and
other debt. Debt decreased by $945 million in 2002, due to the
redemption of 85 percent of the LYONs in May 2002 and the
pay down of our revolving credit facility, offset by the debt
assumed in connection with the acquisition of 14 senior living
communities in December 2002.

Our financial objectives include diversifying our financing
sources, optimizing the mix and maturity of our long-term debt
and reducing our working capital. At year-end 2003, our long-term

debt had an average interest rate of 7.0 percent and an average
maturity of approximately 5.8 years. The ratio of fixed-rate long-
term debt to total long-term debt was 0.99 as of January 2, 2004.
At January 2, 2004, we had long-term public debt ratings of
BBB+ from Standard and Poor’s and Baa2 from Moody'’s.

We have $500 million available for future offerings under
“universal shelf” registration statements we have filed with the
Securities Exchange Commission (SEC).

In January 2001, we issued, through a private placement,
$300 million of 7 percent senior unsecured notes due 2008 and
received net proceeds of $297 million. We completed a registered
exchange offer for these notes on January 15, 2002.

On May 8, 2001, we issued zero-coupon convertible senior
notes due 2021, also known as LYONs, and received cash pro-
ceeds of $405 million. On May 9, 2002, we redeemed for cash
approximately 85 percent of that issue which the LYONs holders
tendered for mandatory repurchase. The remaining LYONs are
convertible into approximately 0.9 million shares of our Class A
Common Stock and carry a yield to maturity of 0.75 percent. We
may redeem the LYONSs on or after May 8, 2004. The holders
may also at their option require us to purchase the LYONSs at
their accreted value on May 8 of each of 2004, 2011 and 2016.
‘We may choose to pay the purchase price for redemptions or
repurchases in cash and/or shares of our Class A Common Stock.

Contractual Obligations and Off Balance
Sheet Arrangements

The following table summarizes our contractual obligations
as of January 2, 2004:

Payments Due by Period

Less
Than 1-3 3-5 After

Contractual Obligations Total 1 Year Years Years 5 Years

(8 in millions)

Debt $1,455 $ 64 $508 $313  $570
Capital lease obligations 11 1 2 1 7
Operating leases

Recourse 1,163 105 189 196 673
Non-recourse 623 42 94 94 393
Other long-term liabilities 70 9 8 8 45

Total contractual cash

obligations $3,322 $221 $801 $612 $1,688

The following table summarizes our commitments as of
January 2, 2004:

Amount of Commitment

Expiration Per Period
Total Less

Other Commercial Amounts Than 1-3 3-5 After
Commitments Committed 1 Year Years Years 5 Years
(8 in millions)
Guarantees $1,182 $133  $354 $249  $446
Timeshare note

repurchase obligations 19 - - - 19
Total $1,201 $133  $354 $249  $465

Our guarantees listed above include $238 million for guaran-
tees that will not be in effect until the underlying hotels are open
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and we begin to manage the properties. Our guarantee fundings
to lenders and hotel owners are generally recoverable as loans

and are generally repayable to us out of future hotel cash flows
and/or proceeds from the sale of hotels. When we repurchase non-
performing timeshare loans, we either collect the outstanding loan
balance in full or foreclose on the asset and subsequently resell it.

Our guarantees include $387 million related to Senior Living
Services lease obligations and lifecare bonds. Sunrise is the pri-
mary obligor of the leases and a portion of the lifecare bonds,
and CNL is the primary obligor of the remainder of the lifecare
bonds. Prior to the sale of the Senior Living Services business at
the end of the first quarter of 2003, these pre-existing guaran-
tees were guarantees by the Company of obligations of consoli-
dated Senior Living Services subsidiaries. Sunrise and CNL
have indemnified us for any guarantee fundings we may be
called on to make in connection with these lease obligations
and lifecare bonds. Our guarantees also include $47 million
of other guarantees associated with the Sunrise sale transaction.
As a result of the settlement with Five Star, $41 million of
these guarantees included above expired subsequent to
January 2, 2004.

Our total unfunded loan commitments amounted to $80 mil-
lion at January 2, 2004. We expect to fund $44 million of those
commitments within one year and $16 million in one to three
years. We do not expect to fund the remaining $20 million of
commitments, which expire as follows: $8 million in one to three
years; and $12 million after five years.

As part of the normal course of business we enter into pur-
chase commitments to manage the daily operating needs of our
hotels. Since we are reimbursed by the hotel owners, these obli-
gations have minimal impact on our net income and cash flow.

Related Party Transactions

We have equity method investments in entities that own hotels
for which we provide management and/or franchise services and
we receive a fee. In addition, in some cases we provide loans,
preferred equity, or guarantees to these entities. The following
tables present financial data resulting from transactions with
these related parties:

Related Party Income Statement Data

(8 in millions) 2003 2002 2001

Base management fees $ 56 $ 48 $ 48
Incentive management fees 4 4 4
Cost reimbursements 699 557 559
Other income 28 26 28
Total Revenue $787 $635 $639
General, administrative and other $ (11) $ (11) $ (15
Reimbursed costs (699) (557)  (559)
Interest income 77 66 51
Provision for loan losses 2 (5) -
Related Party Balance Sheet Data

(8 in millions) 2003 2002

Due to equity method investees $©@ $Q

Due from equity method investees $623  $532

Share Repurchases

We purchased 10.5 million of our shares in 2003 at an average
price of $36.07 per share, 7.8 million of our shares in 2002 at an
average price of $32.52 per share, and 6.1 million of our shares
in 2001 at an average price of $38.20 per share. As of January 2,
2004, 13 million shares remained available for repurchase under
authorizations from our Board of Directors.

Dividends
In May 2003, our Board of Directors increased the quarterly
cash dividend by 7 percent to $0.075 per share.

Other Matters

Inflation

Inflation has been moderate in recent years and has not had a
significant impact on our businesses.

Critical Accounting Policies

Certain of our critical accounting policies require the use of judg-
ment in their application or require estimates of inherently uncer-
tain matters. Our accounting policies comply with principles
generally accepted in the United States, although a change in the
facts and circumstances of the underlying transactions could sig-
nificantly change the application of an accounting policy and the
resulting financial statement impact. We have listed below those
policies that we believe are critical and require the use of com-
plex judgment in their application.

Incentive Fees

We recognize incentive fees as revenue when earned in accor-
dance with the terms of the management contract. In interim
periods, we recognize as income the incentive fees that would be
due to us as if the contract were to terminate at that date, exclu-
sive of any termination fees payable or receivable by us. If we
recognized incentive fees only after the underlying full-year per-
formance thresholds were certain, the revenue recognized for
each year would be unchanged, but no incentive fees for any
year would be recognized until the fourth quarter. We recognized
incentive fee revenue of $109 million, $162 million and $202 mil-
lion in 2003, 2002 and 2001, respectively.

Cost Revmbursements
We incur certain reimbursable costs on behalf of managed hotel
properties and franchisees. In accordance with Emerging Issues
Task Force (EITF) No. 01-14, “Income Statement Characteri-
zation of Reimbursements Received for ‘Out-of-Pocket’ Expenses
Incurred,” we report cost reimbursements from managed proper-
ties and franchisees as revenue, and we report the costs incurred
on behalf of managed properties and franchisees as expenses.
Cost reimbursements are based upon the costs incurred with no
added margin or mark-up. These reimbursed costs relate prima-
rily to payroll costs at domestic properties that we manage, but
also include costs associated with certain materials and services.
Our financial statements reflect cost reimbursements of
$6.2 billion in 2003, $5.7 billion in 2002, and $5.2 billion
in 2001.

Real Estate Sales

We account for the sales of real estate in accordance with FAS
No. 66, “Accounting for Sales of Real Estate.” We reduce gains
on sales of real estate by the maximum exposure to loss if we

[21] Marriott International, Inc.



have continuing involvement with the property and do not trans-
fer substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership. We
reduced gains on sales of real estate due to maximum exposure
to loss by $4 million in 2003, $51 million in 2002 and $16 mil-
lion in 2001. Our ongoing ability to achieve sale accounting
under FAS No. 66 depends on our ability to negotiate the struc-
ture of the sales transactions to comply with these rules.

Timeshare Sales

We also recognize revenue from the sale of timeshare interests in
accordance with FAS No. 66. We recognize sales when (1) we
have received a minimum of 10 percent of the purchase price for
the timeshare interval, (2) the purchaser’s period to cancel for a
refund has expired, (3) we deem the receivables to be collectible,
and (4) we have attained certain minimum sales and construction
levels. We defer all revenue using the deposit method for sales
that do not meet all four of these criteria.

Costs Incurred to Sell Real Estate Projects

We capitalize direct costs incurred to sell real estate projects that
are attributable to and recoverable from the sales of timeshare
interests until we have recognized the sale. Costs eligible for capi-
talization follow the guidelines of FAS No. 67, “Accounting for
Costs and Initial Rental Operations of Real Estate Projects.”
Under this approach, we capitalized selling and marketing costs
of approximately $69 million and $107 million at January 2,
2004, and January 3, 2003, respectively, and have included those
costs in property and equipment in the accompanying consoli-
dated balance sheets. If a contract is cancelled, we charge unre-
coverable direct selling and marketing costs to expense and
record forfeited deposits as income.

Residual Interests

We periodically sell the notes receivable originated by our time-
share segment in connection with the sale of timeshare inter-
vals. We retain servicing assets and other interests in the assets
transferred to entities that are accounted for as residual inter-
ests. The residual interests are treated as “trading” or “available
for sale” securities under the provisions of FAS No. 115
“Accounting for Certain Investments in Debt and Equity
Securities.” At the end of each reporting period, we estimate the
fair value of the residual interests, including servicing assets,
using a discounted cash flow model. We report changes in the
fair values of these residual interests through the accompanying
consolidated statement of income for trading securities and
through the accompanying consolidated statement of compre-
hensive income for available-for-sale securities. We had residual
interests of $203 million at January 2, 2004, and $135 million
at January 3, 2003, which are recorded as long-term receivables
on the consolidated balance sheet.

Loan Loss Reserves

We measure loan impairment based on the present value of
expected future cash flows discounted at the loan’s original
effective interest rate or the estimated fair value of the collateral.
For impaired loans, we establish a specific impairment reserve
for the difference between the recorded investment in the loan
and the present value of the expected future cash flows or the
estimated fair value of the collateral. We apply our loan impair-
ment policy individually to all loans in the portfolio and do not
aggregate loans for the purpose of applying such policy. Where

we determine that a loan is impaired, we recognize interest
income on a cash basis. At January 2, 2004, our recorded
investment in impaired loans was $142 million. We have a
$61 million allowance for credit losses, leaving $81 million of
our investment in impaired loans for which there is no related
allowance for credit losses.

Marriott Rewards

Marriott Rewards is our frequent guest incentive marketing pro-
gram. Marriott Rewards members earn points based on their
spending at our lodging operations and, to a lesser degree,
through participation in affiliated partners’ programs, such as
those offered by airlines and credit card companies.

We defer revenue received from managed, franchised, and
Marriott-owned/leased hotels and program partners equal to the
fair value of our future redemption obligation. We determine the
fair value of the future redemption obligation based on statistical
formulas that project timing of future point redemption based
on historical levels, including an estimate of the “breakage” for
points that will never be redeemed, and an estimate of the points
that will eventually be redeemed. These judgmental factors
determine the required liability for outstanding points. Our man-
agement and franchise agreements require that we be reimbursed
currently for the costs of operating the program, including mar-
keting, promotion, and communicating with and performing
member services for the Marriott Rewards members. Due to the
requirement that hotels reimburse us for program operating costs
as incurred, we receive and recognize the balance of the revenue
from hotels in connection with the Marriott Rewards program at
the time such costs are incurred and expensed. We recognize the
component of revenue from program partners that corresponds
to program maintenance services over the expected life of the
points awarded. Upon the redemption of points, we recognize as
revenue the amounts previously deferred, and recognize the cor-
responding expense relating to the cost of the awards redeemed.

Valuation of Goodwill and Other Long-Lived Assets

We evaluate the fair value of goodwill to assess potential impair-
ments on an annual basis, or during the year if an event or other
circumstance indicates that we may not be able to recover the
carrying amount of the asset. We evaluate the fair value of good-
will at the reporting unit level and make that determination
based upon future cash flow projections. We evaluate the poten-
tial impairment of other intangible assets whenever an event or
other circumstance indicates that we may be able to recover the
carrying amount of the asset. Our evaluation is based upon
future cash flow projections. We record an impairment loss for
goodwill and other intangible assets when the carrying value of
the intangible asset is less than its estimated fair value.

QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES
ABOUT MARKET RISK

We are exposed to market risk from changes in interest rates and
changes in foreign exchange rates. We manage our exposure to
these risks by monitoring available financing alternatives,
through development and application of credit granting policies
and by entering into derivative arrangements. We do not foresee
any significant changes in either our exposure to fluctuations in
interest rates or foreign exchange rates or in how such exposure
is managed in the future.
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We are exposed to interest rate risk on our floating rate time- = Six outstanding interest rate swap agreements to manage

share and notes receivable, our residual interests retained in con- interest rate risk associated with the residual interests we
nection with the sale of timeshare intervals, and the fair value of retain in conjunction with our timeshare note sales. We are
our fixed rate notes receivable. required by purchasers and/or rating agencies to utilize inter-
Changes in interest rates also impact our floating rate long- est rate swaps to protect the excess spread within our sold
term debt and the fair value of our fixed rate long-term debt. note pools. The aggregate notional amount of the swaps is
We use derivative instruments as part of our overall strategy to $726 million, and they expire through 2022.
manage our exposure to market risks associated with fluctuations in = Twenty-four forward foreign exchange contracts to hedge the
interest rates and foreign currency exchange rates. As a matter of potential volatility of earnings and cash flows associated with
policy, we do not use derivatives for trading or speculative purposes. variations in foreign exchange rates during fiscal year 2004.
At January 2, 2004, we were party to the following derivative The aggregate dollar equivalent of the notional amounts of
mstruments: the forward contracts is approximately $37 million, and the
= An interest rate swap agreement under which we receive a forward contracts expire throughout 2004.
floating rate of interest and pay a fixed rate of interest. The ®  Two forward foreign exchange contracts to manage the for-
swap modifies our interest rate exposure by effectively con- eign currency exposure related to certain monetary assets
verting a note receivable with a fixed rate to a floating rate. denominated in Pound Sterling. The aggregate dollar
The aggregate notional amount of the swap is $92 million equivalent of the notional amounts of the forward contracts
and it matures in 2010. is $34 million at January 2, 2004.

The following table sets forth the scheduled maturities and the total fair value of our derivatives and other financial instruments as
of January 2, 2004:

Maturities by Period

Total Total
There- Carrying Fair
(8 in millions) 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 after Amount Value
Assets — Maturities represent principal receipts,
fair values represent assets.
Timeshare notes receivable $15 $ 21 $ 17 $ 13 $ 13 $ 88 $ 167 $ 167
Average interest rate 12.4%
Fixed rate notes receivable $ 26 $ 1 $190 $ 29 $ 89 $ 362 $ 697 $ 725
Average interest rate 11.02%
Floating rate notes receivable $23 $ 28 $ 43 $140 $ 41 $ 24 $ 299 $ 299
Average interest rate 6.24%
Residual interests $ 83 $ 39 $ 28 $ 19 $ 14 $ 20 $ 203 $ 203
Average interest rate 5.62%
Liabilities — Maturities represent principal payments,
fair values represent liabilities.
Fixed rate debt $(63) $(495) $(13) $ 9 $(303) $(505) $(1,388) $(1,401)
Average interest rate 7.27%
Floating rate debt $ 1) $ - $ - $ @O $ - $ Q3 $ 6B $ 6
Average interest rate .01%
Convertible debt $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ (62 $ (62 $ 43
Average interest rate 0.75%
Derivatives — Maturities represent notional amounts,
fair values represent assets (liabilities).
Interest Rate Swaps:
Fixed to variable $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $50 $ (10 $ (10
Average pay rate 4.53%
Average receive rate 1.34%
Variable to fixed $ — $ - $ - $ - $ - $ 228 $ 8 $ 8
Average pay rate 1.65%
Average receive rate 5.33%
Forward Foreign Exchange Contracts:
Fixed (Euro) to Fixed ($U.S.) $22 $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ 1 $ 1
Fixed (GPB) to Fixed ($U.S.) $ 49 $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ -
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FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

‘We make forward-looking statements in this report based on the beliefs and assumptions of our management, and on information currently
available to us. Forward-looking statements include information about our possible or assumed future results of operations in “Management’s
Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations” under the headings “Business Overview,” “Liquidity and Capital

Resources” and other statements throughout this report preceded by, followed by or that include the words “believes,” “expects,” “anticipates,”

“intends,” “plans,” “estimates,” or similar expressions.
Forward-looking statements involve risks, uncertainties and assumptions, and our actual results may differ materially from those expressed in

our forward-looking statements. We therefore caution you not to rely unduly on any forward-looking statement.

Risks and Uncertainties

You should understand that the following important factors, as well as those discussed elsewhere in this report, could cause results to differ mate-
rially from those expressed in such forward-looking statements. Because there is no way to determine in advance whether, or to what extent, any
present uncertainty will ultimately impact our business, you should give equal weight to each of the following.

Competition in each of our business segments. Each of our hotel brands competes with major hotel chains in national and international
venues and with independent companies in regional markets. Our ability to remain competitive and attract and retain business and leisure travelers
depends on our success in distinguishing the quality, value and efficiency of our lodging products and services from other market opportunities.

Supply of and demand for hotel rooms, timeshare units and corporate apartments. The availability of and demand for hotel rooms,
timeshare units and corporate apartments is directly affected by overall economic conditions, regional and national development of competing
hotels and timeshare resorts, local supply and demand for extended stay and corporate apartments, and the recovery in business travel. While
we monitor the projected and actual estimates of room supply and availability, the demand for and occupancy rate of hotel rooms and timeshare
units, and the occupancy rates of apartments and extended stay lodging properties in all markets in which we conduct business, we cannot
assure you that current factors relating to supply and demand will work to contain revenue growth and business volume.

Consistency in owner relations. Our responsibility under our management agreements to manage each hotel and enforce the standards
required for our brands may, in some instances, be subject to interpretation. We seek to resolve any disagreements in order to develop and main-
tain positive relations with current and potential hotel owners and joint venture partners.

Increase in the costs of conducting our business; insurance. We take appropriate steps to monitor cost increases in energy, healthcare,
insurance, transportation and fuel costs and other expenses central to the conduct of our business. Market forces beyond our control may
nonetheless limit both the scope of property and liability insurance coverage that we can obtain and our ability to obtain such coverage at rea-
sonable rates, particularly in light of continued terrorist activities and threats. We therefore cannot assure you that we will be successful in
obtaining such insurance without increases in cost or decreases in coverage levels.

International, national and regional economic conditions. Because we conduct our business activities on a national and international plat-
form, our activities are susceptible to changes in the performance of regional and global economies. In recent years our business has been hurt
by decreases in travel resulting from recent economic conditions, the military action in Iraq, and the heightened travel security measures that
have resulted from the threat of further terrorism. Our future economic performance is similarly subject to the uncertain magnitude and dura-
tion of the apparent economic recovery in the United States, the prospects of improving economic performance in other regions, and the
unknown pace of any business travel recovery that results.

Threat and spread of communicable diseases. The impact of any significant recurrence of Severe Acute Respiratory Syndrome (“SARS”)
or the uncontained spread of any contagious or volatile disease will affect our business.

Recovery of loan and guarantee investments and recycling of capital; availability of new capital resources. The availability of capital
to allow us and potential and current hotel owners to fund new hotel investments, as well as refurbishment and improvement of existing hotels,
depends in large measure on capital markets and liquidity factors over which we can exert little control. Our ability to recover loan and guaran-
tee advances from hotel operations or from owners through the proceeds of hotel sales, refinancing of debt or otherwise may also effect our abil-
ity to recycle and raise new capital.

Effect of internet reservation services. Internet room distribution and reservation channels may adversely affect the rates we may charge
for hotel rooms and the manner in which our brands can compete in the marketplace with other brands. We believe that we are taking adequate
steps to resolve this competitive threat, but cannot assure you that these steps will prove or remain successful.

Change in laws and regulations. Our business may be affected by changes in accounting standards, timeshare sales regulations and state
and federal tax laws.

Recent privacy initiatives and State and Federal limitations on marketing and solicitation. The National Do Not Call Registry and var-
ious state laws regarding marketing and solicitation, including anti-spam legislation, may affect the amount and timing of our sales of timeshare
units and other products.

Interruption of the synthetic fuel operations. Problems related to supply, production, and demand at any of the synthetic fuel facilities, the
power plants that buy synthetic fuel from the joint venture or the coal mines where the joint venture buys coal, could be caused by accidents,
personnel issues, severe weather or similar unpredictable events.

Litigation. We cannot predict with certainty the cost of defense, the cost of prosecution, or the ultimate outcome of litigation filed by or
against us, including remedies or damage awards.

Disaster. We cannot assure you that our ability to provide fully integrated business continuity solutions in the event of a disaster will occur
without interruption to, or effect on, the conduct of our business.

Barriers to growth and market entry. Factors influencing real estate development generally, including site availability, financing, planning,
zoning and other local approvals, and other limitations which may be imposed by market and submarket factors, such as projected room occu-
pancy, growth in demand opposite projected supply, territorial restrictions in our management and franchise agreements, costs of construction,
and anticipated room rate structure, all affect and potentially limit our ability to sustain continued growth through management or franchise
agreements for new hotels and the conversion of existing facilities to managed or franchised Marriott brands.

Other risks described from time to time in our filings with the SEC. We continually evaluate the risks and possible mitigating factors to
such risks and provide additional and updated information in our SEC filings.
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Consolidated Statement of Income

Fiscal Years Ended January 2, 2004, January 3, 2003, and December 28, 2001 2003 2002 2001

(8 in millions, except per share amounts)

REVENUES
Base management fees! $ 388 $ 379 $ 372
Franchise fees 245 232 220
Incentive management fees! 109 162 202
Owned, leased, corporate housing and other revenue' 633 651 803
Timeshare interval sales and services 1,145 1,059 934
Cost reimbursements! 6,192 5,739 5,237
Synthetic fuel 302 193 -
9,014 8,415 7,768
OPERATING COSTS AND EXPENSES
Owned, leased and corporate housing — direct 505 580 663
Timeshare — direct 1,011 938 793
Reimbursed costs! 6,192 5,739 5,237
General, administrative and other! 523 510 655
Synthetic fuel 406 327 -
8,637 8,094 7,348

OPERATING INCOME 377 321 420
Gains and other income 106 132 78
Interest expense (110) (86) (109)
Interest income’ 129 122 94
Provision for loan losses! (7) (12) (48)
Equity in earnings (losses)

Synthetic fuel 10 - -

Other 17) (6) (14)
INCOME FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS BEFORE

INCOME TAXES AND MINORITY INTEREST 488 471 421
Benefit (provision) for income taxes 43 (32) (152)
INCOME FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS BEFORE MINORITY INTEREST 531 439 269
Synthetic fuel minority interest (55) - -
INCOME FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS 476 439 269
Discontinued operations
Income (loss) from Senior Living Services, net of tax 26 (108) (29)
Loss from Distribution Services, net of tax - (54) 4)
NET INCOME $ 502 $ 277 $ 236
EARNINGS PER SHARE - Basic
Earnings from continuing operations $ 2.05 $ 1.83 $ 1.10
Earnings (loss) from discontinued operations 11 (-68) (-13)
Earnings per share $ 2.16 $ 115 $ .97
EARNINGS PER SHARE - Diluted
Earnings from continuing operations $ 1.94 $ 1.74 $ 1.05
Earnings (loss) from discontinued operations 11 (.64) (-13)
Earnings per share $ 2.05 $ 1.10 $ .92
DIVIDENDS DECLARED PER SHARE $0.295 $0.275 $0.255

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

! See Footnote 22 “Related Party Transactions” of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements_for disclosure of related party amounts.
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Consolidated Balance Sheet

January 2, January 3,
January 2, 2004, and January 3, 2003 2004 2003
(8 in millions)
ASSETS
Current assets
Cash and equivalents $ 229 $ 198
Accounts and notes receivable 699 522
Prepaid taxes 223 300
Other 84 89
Assets held for sale - 664
1,235 1,773
Property and equipment 2,513 2,560
Goodwill 923 923
Other intangible assets 526 495
Investments in affiliates — equity 468 475
Investments in affiliates — notes receivable 558 522
Notes and other receivables, net
Loans to timeshare owners 152 153
Other notes receivable 389 366
Other long-term receivables 563 473
1,104 992
Other 850 556
$8,177 $8,296
LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Current liabilities
Accounts payable $ 584 $ 505
Accrued payroll and benefits 412 373
Casualty self-insurance 43 32
Other payables and accruals 667 662
Current portion of long-term debt 64 221
Liabilities of businesses held for sale - 390
1,770 2,183
Long-term debt 1,391 1,653
Casualty self-insurance reserves 169 106
Other long-term liabilities 1,009 881
Shareholders’ equity
Class A common stock 3 3
Additional paid-in capital 3,317 3,224
Retained earnings 1,505 1,126
Deferred compensation (81) (43)
Treasury stock, at cost (865) (667)
Accumulated other comprehensive loss (41) (70)
3,838 3,573
$8,177 $8,296

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

Fiscal Years Ended January 2, 2004, January 3, 2003, and December 28, 2001 2003 2002 2001
(8 in mallions)
OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Income from continuing operations $ 476 $ 439 $ 269
Adjustments to reconcile to cash provided by operating activities:
Income (loss) from discontinued operations 7 9 (33)
Discontinued operations - gain (loss) on sale/exit 19 (171) -
Depreciation and amortization 160 187 222
Minority interest in results of synthetic fuel operation 55 - -
Income taxes (171) (105) 9
Timeshare activity, net (111) (63) (358)
Other (59) 223 278
Working capital changes:
Accounts receivable (81) (31) 57
Other current assets 11 60 (20)
Accounts payable and accruals 115 (32) (21)
Net cash provided by operating activities 421 516 403
INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Capital expenditures (210) (292) (560)
Dispositions 494 729 554
Loan advances (241) (237) (367)
Loan collections and sales 280 124 71
Other (39) (7) (179)
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities 284 317 (481)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Commercial paper, net (102) 102 (827)
Issuance of long-term debt 14 26 1,329
Repayment of long-term debt (273) (946) (123)
(Redemption) issuance of convertible debt - (347) 405
Issuance of Class A common stock 102 35 76
Dividends paid (68) (65) (61)
Purchase of treasury stock (373) (252) (235)
Cash received from minority interest in synthetic fuel operation 26 - -
Net cash (used in) provided by financing activities (674) (1,447) 564
INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND EQUIVALENTS 31 (614) 486
CASH AND EQUIVALENTS, beginning of year 198 812 326
CASH AND EQUIVALENTS, end of year $ 229 $ 198 $ 812

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

[27] Marriott International, Inc.



Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

Fiscal Years Ended January 2, 2004, January 3, 2003, and December 28, 2001 2003 2002 2001
(8 in mallions)
Net income $502 $277 $236
Other comprehensive income (loss), net of tax:
Foreign currency translation adjustments 37 (7) (14)
Other 8) (13) 8
"Total other comprehensive income (loss) 29 (20) (6)
Comprehensive income $531 $257 $230

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Consolidated Statement of Shareholders’ Equity

Fiscal Years Ended January 2, 2004, January 3, 2003, and December 28, 2001

(in mallions) Accumulated
Common Other
Common Class A Additional ~Deferred Unearned Treasury Compre-
Shares Common  Paid-in ~ Compen- Retained  ESOP Stock, hensive
Outstanding Stock Capital sation ~ Earnings  Shares at Cost Loss
241.0 Balance at December 30, 2000 $3 $3,629 $(39) $ 851 $(679) $(454) $(44)
- Net income - - - 236 - - -
- Dividends ($.255 per share) - - - (62) - - -
5.8 Employee stock plan issuance and other — (202) (10) (84) 388 186 (6)
(6.1) Purchase of treasury stock - — - - - (235) -
240.7 Balance at December 28, 2001 3 3,427 (49) 941 (291) (503) (50)
- Net income - - - 277 - - -
Dividends ($.275 per share) - - - (67) - - -
3.0 Employee stock plan issuance
and other - (203) 6 (25) 291 90 (20)
(7.8) Purchase of treasury stock - - - - - (254) -
235.9 Balance at January 3, 2003 3 3,224 (43) 1,126 - (667) (70)
- Net income - - - 502 - - -
- Dividends ($.295 per share) - - - (68) - - -
5.8 Employee stock plan issuance and other — 93 (38) (55) - 182 29
(10.5) Purchase of treasury stock - - - - - (380) -
231.2 Balance at January 2, 2004 $3 $3,317 $(81) $1,505 $ - $(865) $(41)

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of Presentation

The consolidated financial statements present the results of opera-
tions, financial position and cash flows of Marriott International,
Inc. (together with its subsidiaries, we, us or the Company).

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States
requires management to make estimates and assumptions that
affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities as of the date
of the financial statements, the reported amounts of sales and
expenses during the reporting period and the disclosures of con-
tingent liabilities. Accordingly, ultimate results could differ from
those estimates.

We have reclassified certain prior year amounts to conform to
our 2003 presentation. As part of our income statement reclassi-
fication, gains, including timeshare note sale gains, and equity in
earnings/losses from our joint ventures are reflected below oper-
ating income. In addition, general, administrative and other
expenses now reflect general, administrative and other expenses
for the entire company including domestic and international
lodging, our ExecuStay business and our Timeshare segment,
as well as corporate expenses.

As a result of the sale of our Senior Living Services commu-
nities and management business and the discontinuation of our
Distribution Services business, the balances and activities of two
reportable segments, Senior Living Services and Distribution
Services, have been segregated and reported as discontinued
operations for all periods presented.

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial
statements reflect all normal and recurring adjustments necessary
to present fairly our financial position as of January 2, 2004, and
January 3, 2003, the results of our operations and cash flows for
the fiscal years ended January 2, 2004, January 3, 2003, and
December 28, 2001. We have eliminated all material intercom-
pany transactions and balances between entities consolidated
in these financial statements.

Fiscal Year

Our fiscal year ends on the Friday which is nearest to
December 31. The 2003 and 2001 fiscal years included
52 weeks, while the 2002 fiscal year included 53 weeks.

Revenue Recognition

Our revenues include (1) base and incentive management fees,
(2) franchise fees, (3) revenues from lodging properties and other
businesses owned or leased by us, (4) timeshare interval sales,

(5) cost reimbursements, and (6) sales made by our synthetic fuel
operation while consolidated. Management fees comprise a base
fee, which is a percentage of the revenues of hotels, and an
incentive fee, which is generally based on hotel profitability.
Franchise fees comprise initial application fees and continuing
royalties generated from our franchise programs, which permit
the hotel owners and operators to use certain of our brand

names. Cost reimbursements include direct and indirect costs
that are reimbursed to us by lodging properties that we manage
or franchise.

Management Fees: We recognize base fees as revenue when
earned in accordance with the contract. In interim periods and at
year end we recognize incentive fees that would be due as if the
contract were to terminate at that date, exclusive of any termina-
tion fees payable or receivable by us.

Franchise Fee Revenue: We recognize franchise fee revenue
in accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting Standards
(FAS) No. 45, “Accounting for Franchise Fee Revenue.” We rec-
ognize franchise fees as revenue in each accounting period
as fees are earned and become receivable from the franchisee.

Owned and Leased Units: We recognize room sales and
revenues from guest services for our owned and leased units,
including ExecuStay, when rooms are occupied and services
have been rendered.

Timeshare Intervals: We recognize revenue from timeshare
interest sales in accordance with FAS No. 66, “Accounting for
Sales of Real Estate.” We recognize sales when (1) we have
received a minimum of 10 percent of the purchase price for the
timeshare interval, (2) the purchaser’s period to cancel for a
refund has expired, (3) we deem the receivables to be collectible
and (4) we have attained certain minimum sales and construction
levels. We defer all revenue using the deposit method for sales
that do not meet all four of these criteria.

Cost Reimbursements: We recognize cost reimbursements
from managed, franchised and timeshare properties when we
incur the related reimbursable costs.

Synthetic Fuel: Effective November 7, 2003, we account for
the synthetic fuel operation using the equity method of account-
ing. Prior to that date we recognized revenue from the consoli-
dated synthetic fuel joint venture when the synthetic fuel was
produced and sold. We recognize additional revenue based on
tax credits allocated to our joint venture partner when the tax
credits are generated.

Other Revenue: In 2003, we recorded a $36 million insur-
ance settlement for lost management fees associated with the
New York Marriott World Trade Center hotel, which was
destroyed in the 2001 terrorist attacks.

Ground Leases

We are both the lessor and lessee of land under long-term oper-
ating leases, which include scheduled increases in minimum
rents. We recognize these scheduled rent increases on a straight-
line basis over the initial lease terms.

Real Estate Sales

We account for the sales of real estate in accordance with

FAS No. 66. We reduce gains on sales of real estate by the
maximum exposure to loss if we have continuing involvement
with the property and do not transfer substantially all of the
risks and rewards of ownership. We reduced gains on sales of
real estate due to maximum exposure to loss by $4 million in
2003, $51 million in 2002 and $16 million in 2001.
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Profit Sharing Plan

We contribute to a profit sharing plan for the benefit of employ-
ees meeting certain eligibility requirements and electing participa-
tion in the plan. Contributions are determined based on a
specified percentage of salary deferrals by participating employ-
ees. Excluding the discontinued Senior Living Services and
Distribution Services businesses, we recognized compensation
cost from profit sharing of $53 million in 2003, $54 million in
2002 and $52 million in 2001. We recognized compensation cost
from profit sharing of $1 million in 2003, $8 million in 2002 and
$6 million in 2001, related to the discontinued Senior Living
Services and Distribution Services businesses.

Self-Insurance Programs

We are self-insured for certain levels of property, liability, work-
ers’ compensation and employee medical coverage. We accrue
estimated costs of these self-insurance programs at the present
value of projected settlements for known and incurred but not
reported claims. We use a discount rate of 4.8 percent to deter-
mine the present value of the projected settlements, which we
consider to be reasonable given our history of settled claims,
including payment patterns and the fixed nature of the individ-
ual settlements.

Marriott Rewards

Marriott Rewards is our frequent guest incentive marketing pro-
gram. Marriott Rewards members earn points based on their
spending at our lodging operations and, to a lesser degree,
through participation in affiliated partners’ programs, such as
those offered by airlines and credit card companies. Points,
which we accumulate and track on the members’ behalf, can be
redeemed for hotel stays at most of our lodging operations, air-
line tickets, airline frequent flier program miles, rental cars, and a
variety of other awards. Points cannot be redeemed for cash.

We provide Marriott Rewards as a marketing program to par-
ticipating hotels. We charge the cost of operating the program,
including the estimated cost of award redemption, to hotels
based on members’ qualifying expenditures.

We defer revenue received from managed, franchised, and
Marriott-owned/leased hotels and program partners equal to the
fair value of our future redemption obligation. We determine the
fair value of the future redemption obligation based on statistical
formulas which project timing of future point redemption based
on historical levels, including an estimate of the “breakage” for
points that will never be redeemed, and an estimate of the points
that will eventually be redeemed. These judgmental factors
determine the required liability for outstanding points. Our man-
agement and franchise agreements require that we be reimbursed
currently for the costs of operating the program, including mar-
keting, promotion, and communicating with and performing
member services for the Marriott Rewards members. Due to the
requirement that hotels reimburse us for program operating costs
as incurred, we receive and recognize the balance of the revenue
from hotels in connection with the Marriott Rewards program at
the time such costs are incurred and expensed. We recognize the

component of revenue from program partners that corresponds
to program maintenance services over the expected life of the
points awarded. Upon the redemption of points, we recognize as
revenue the amounts previously deferred, and recognize the cor-
responding expense relating to the cost of the awards redeemed.

Our liability for the Marriott Rewards program was $784 mil-
lion at January 2, 2004, and $683 million at January 3, 2003, of
which we have included $502 million and $418 million, respec-
tively, in other long-term liabilities in the accompanying consoli-
dated balance sheet.

Rebates and Allowances

‘We participate in various vendor rebate and allowance arrange-
ments as a manager of hotel properties. There are three types of
programs that are common in the hotel industry that are some-
times referred to as “rebates” or “allowances,” including unre-
stricted rebates, marketing (restricted) rebates, and sponsorships.
The primary business purpose of these arrangements is to secure
favorable pricing for our hotel owners for various products and
services or enhance resources for promotional campaigns co-
sponsored by certain vendors. More specifically, unrestricted
rebates are funds returned to the buyer, generally based upon
volumes or quantities of goods purchased. Marketing (restricted)
allowances are funds allocated by vendor agreements for certain
marketing or other joint promotional initiatives. Sponsorships
are funds paid by vendors, generally used by the vendor to gain
exposure at meetings and events, which are accounted for as a
reduction of the cost of the event.

‘We account for rebates and allowances as adjustments of the
prices of the vendors’ products and services in accordance with
EITF 02-16, “Accounting by a Customer (Including a Reseller)
for Certain Consideration Received from a Vendor” We show
vendor costs and the reimbursement of those costs as reim-
bursed costs and cost reimbursements revenue, respectively.
Therefore, rebates are reflected as a reduction of these line items.

Cash and Equivalents
We consider all highly liquid investments with a maturity of
three months or less at date of purchase to be cash equivalents.

Loan Loss and Accounts Receivable Reserves

‘We measure loan impairment based on the present value of
expected future cash flows discounted at the loan’s original effec-
tive interest rate or the estimated fair value of the collateral. For
impaired loans, we establish a specific impairment reserve for the
difference between the recorded investment in the loan and the
present value of the expected future cash flows or the estimated
fair value of the collateral. We apply our loan impairment policy
individually to all loans in the portfolio and do not aggregate
loans for the purpose of applying such policy. For loans that we
have determined to be impaired, we recognize interest income
on a cash basis. At January 2, 2004, our recorded investment

in impaired loans was $142 million. We have a $61 million
allowance for credit losses, leaving $81 million of our investment
in impaired loans for which there is no related allowance for
credit losses.
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The following table summarizes the activity in our accounts
and notes receivable reserves for the years ended December 28,
2001, January 3, 2003, and January 2, 2004:

Summarized information relating to our equity method
investments is as follows:

(8 in millions) 2003 2002 2001
Accounts Notes I S S
Receivable Receivable ncome Statement Summary

(8 in millions) Reserve Reserve Sales $1,487 $1,322 $1,531
December 30, 2000 $23 $12 Net (loss) income $(102) $ (59) $ (39)
Additions 38 48
Write-offs (1) 1) (8 in millions) 2003 2002
Decér.nbcr 28, 2001 50 59 Balance Sheet Summary
Additions 10 12 . .

) Assets (primarily comprised of
Write-offs (20) (12) hotel real estate managed by us) $4,171  $4,104
January 3, 2003 40 59 Liabilities $3,275  $2,937
Additions 8 15
Write-offs (19) 5) Our ownership interest in these equity method investments
Reversals ©6) 8) varies generally from 10 percent to 50 percent.
January 2, 2004 $23 $61 Costs Incurred to Sell Real Estate Projects

Valuation of Goodwill and Other Long-Lived Assets

We evaluate the fair value of goodwill to assess potential impair-
ments on an annual basis, or during the year if an event or other
circumstance indicates that we may not be able to recover the
carrying amount of the asset. We evaluate the fair value of good-
will at the reporting unit level and make that determination
based upon future cash flow projections. We evaluate the poten-
tial impairment of other intangible assets whenever an event or
other circumstance indicates that we may not be able to recover
the carrying amount of the asset. Our evaluation is based upon
future cash flow projections. We record an impairment loss for
goodwill and other intangible assets when the carrying value of
the intangible asset is less than its estimated fair value.

Assets Held for Sale

We consider properties to be assets held for sale when manage-
ment approves and commits to a formal plan to actively market
a property for sale. Upon designation as an asset held for sale,
we record the carrying value of each property at the lower of its
carrying value or its estimated fair value, less estimated costs to
sell, and we stop recording depreciation expense.

Investments

We consolidate entities that we control. We account for invest-
ments in joint ventures using the equity method of accounting
when we exercise significant influence over the venture. If we
do not exercise significant influence, we account for the invest-
ment using the cost method of accounting. We account for
investments in limited partnerships and limited liability compa-
nies using the equity method of accounting when we own more
than a minimal investment.

We capitalize direct costs incurred to sell real estate projects
attributable to and recoverable from the sales of timeshare inter-
ests until the sales are recognized. Costs eligible for capitaliza-
tion follow the guidelines of FAS No. 67, “Accounting for Costs
and Initial Rental Operations of Real Estate Projects.” Selling
and marketing costs capitalized under this approach were
approximately $69 million and $107 million at January 2, 2004,
and January 3, 2003, respectively, and are included in property
and equipment in the accompanying consolidated balance
sheets. If a contract is canceled, we charge unrecoverable direct
selling and marketing costs to expense, and record deposits for-
feited as income.

Residual Interests

We periodically sell notes receivable originated by our timeshare
segment in connection with the sale of timeshare intervals. We
retain servicing assets and other interests in the assets trans-
ferred to entities that are accounted for as residual interests. We
treat the residual interests as “trading” or “available for sale”
securities under the provisions of FAS No. 115, “Accounting for
Certain Investments in Debt and Equity Securities.” At the end
of each reporting period, we estimate the fair value of the resid-
ual interests, including servicing assets, using a discounted cash
flow model. We report changes in the fair values of these resid-
ual interests through the accompanying consolidated statement
of income for trading securities and through the accompanying
consolidated statement of comprehensive income for available
for sale securities. We had residual interests of $203 million at
January 2, 2004, and $135 million at January 3, 2003, which are
recorded as other long-term receivables on the consolidated bal-
ance sheet.

Derivative Instruments

‘We use derivative instruments as part of our overall strategy to
manage our exposure to market risks associated with fluctua-
tions in interest rates and foreign currency exchange rates. As a
matter of policy, we do not use derivatives for trading or specu-
lative purposes.
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We record all derivatives at fair value either as assets or lia-
bilities. We recognize, currently in earnings, changes in fair
value of derivatives not designated as hedging instruments and
of derivatives designated as fair value hedging instruments.
Changes in the fair value of the hedged item in a fair value
hedge are recorded as an adjustment to the carrying amount
of the hedged item and recognized in earnings in the same
income statement line item as the change in the fair value of
the derivative.

We record the effective portion of changes in fair value of
derivatives designated as cash flow hedging instruments as a
component of other comprehensive income and report the inef-
fective portion currently in earnings. We reclassify amounts
included in other comprehensive income into earnings in the
same period during which the hedged item affects earnings.

Foreign Operations

The U.S. dollar is the functional currency of our consolidated
and unconsolidated entities operating in the United States. The
functional currency for our consolidated and unconsolidated
entities operating outside of the United States is generally the
local currency of the country in which the entity is located. The
Company’s consolidated and unconsolidated entities whose func-
tional currency is not the U.S. dollar translate their financial
statements into U.S. dollars. Assets and liabilities are translated
at the exchange rate in effect as of the financial statement date
and income statement accounts are translated using the average
exchange rate for the period. Transaction adjustments from for-
eign exchange and the effect of exchange rate changes on inter-
company transactions of a long-term investment nature are
included as a separate component of shareholders’ equity. We
report gains and losses from foreign exchange of intercompany
receivables and payables that are not of a long-term investment
nature, as well as gains and losses from foreign currency transac-
tions, currently in operating costs and expenses, and those
amounted to a $7 million gain in 2003, a $6 million loss in 2002,
and an $8 million loss in 2001.

New Accounting Standards

In May 2003, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB)
issued FAS No. 150, “Accounting for Certain Financial Instru-
ments with Characteristics of both Liabilities and Equity.” The
provisions of FAS No. 150 are effective for financial instruments
entered into or modified after May 31, 2003, and otherwise are
effective at the beginning of the first interim period beginning
after June 15, 2003, or our third quarter of 2003. FAS No. 150
has no material impact on our financial statements.

We adopted FAS No. 142, “Goodwill and Other Intangible
Assets,” in the first quarter of 2002. FAS No. 142 requires that
goodwill is not amortized, but rather reviewed annually for
impairment. The initial adoption of FAS No. 142 did not
result in an impairment charge to goodwill or other intangible
assets and increased our fiscal 2002 net income by approxi-
mately $30 million.

The following table presents the impact FAS No. 142 would
have had on our income from continuing operations, basic and
diluted earnings per share from continuing operations, and basic

and diluted net earnings per share for fiscal year ended
December 28, 2001, if we had adopted it in the first quarter of 2001:

Fiscal year ended
December 28, 2001

Goodwill
Reported Amortization Adjusted

(8 in millions, except
per share amounts)

Income from continuing

operations, after tax $269 $27 $296
Net income 236 32 268
Basic earnings per share

from continuing operations 1.10 12 1.22
Basic net earnings per share .97 13 1.10
Diluted earnings per share

from continuing operations 1.05 .10 1.15
Diluted net earnings per share .92 12 1.04

We adopted FAS No. 146, “Accounting for Costs Associated
with Exit or Disposal Activities,” in the first quarter of 2003. The
adoption of FAS No. 146 did not have a material impact on our
financial statements.

We adopted the disclosure provisions of FASB Interpretation
No. (FIN) 45, “Guarantor’s Accounting and Disclosure
Requirements for Guarantees, Including Indirect Guarantees of
Indebtedness of Others,” in the fourth quarter of 2002. We
applied the recognition and measurement provisions for guaran-
tees issued in 2003, and there was no material impact on our
financial statements.

FIN 46, “Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities” (the
“Interpretation”), was effective for all enterprises with variable
interests in variable interest entities created after January 31,
2003. FIN 46(R), which was revised in December 2003, is effec-
tive for all entities to which the provisions of FIN 46 were not
applied as of December 24, 2003. The provisions of FIN 46(R)
must be applied to all entities subject to the Interpretation from
the beginning of the first quarter of 2004. If an entity is deter-
mined to be a variable interest entity, it must be consolidated by
the enterprise that absorbs the majority of the entity’s expected
losses, receives a majority of the entity’s expected residual
returns, or both. Where it is reasonably possible that the com-
pany will consolidate or disclose information about a variable
interest entity, the company must disclose the nature, purpose,
size and activity of the variable interest entity and the company’s
maximum exposure to loss as a result of its involvement with the
variable interest entity in all financial statements issued after
January 31, 2003. We do not expect to consolidate any previ-
ously unconsolidated entities as a result of adopting FIN 46(R).

Marriott currently consolidates four entities which will be
deemed variable interest entities under FIN 46(R). These entities
were established with the same partner to lease four Marriott
branded hotels. The combined capital in the four variable inter-
est entities is $6 million, which is used primarily to fund hotel
working capital. Our equity at risk is $4 million, and we hold
55 percent of the common equity shares. In addition, we guaran-
tee the lease obligations of one of the hotels to the landlord, our
total remaining exposure under this guarantee is $2 million; and
our total exposure to loss is $6 million.
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FIN 46(R) also requires us to disclose information about sig-
nificant variable interests we hold in variable interest entities,
including the nature, purpose, size, and activity of the variable
interest entity and our maximum exposure to loss as a result of
our involvement with the variable interest entity.

See footnote 8, “Synthetic Fuel,” for discussion of the nature,
purpose, and size of the two synthetic fuel joint ventures as well
as the nature of our involvement and the timing of when our
involvement began. The synthetic fuel joint ventures will be
deemed variable interest entities under FIN 46(R). Our maxi-
mum exposure to loss is $83 million at January 2, 2004. We cur-
rently do not consolidate the joint ventures and will not upon
adoption of FIN 46(R) since we do not bear the majority of the
expected losses.

We have one other significant interest in an entity which
will be deemed a variable interest entity under FIN 46(R). In
February 2001, we entered into a shareholders’ agreement with
an unrelated third party to form a joint venture to own and
lease luxury hotels to be managed by us. In February 2002, the
joint venture signed its first lease with a third-party landlord.
The initial capital structure of the joint venture is $4 million of
debt and $4 million of equity. We hold 35 percent of the equity,
or $1 million, and 65 percent of the debt, or $3 million, for a
total investment of $4 million. In addition, each equity partner
entered into various guarantees with the landlord to guarantee
lease payments. Our total exposure under these guarantees is
$17 million. Our maximum exposure to loss is $21 million. We
currently do not consolidate the joint venture and will not upon
adoption of FIN 46(R) since we do not bear the majority of the
expected losses.

FIN 46(R) does not apply to qualifying special purpose enti-
ties, such as those sometimes used by us to sell notes receivable
originated by our timeshare business in connection with the
sale of timeshare intervals. We will continue to account for
these qualifying special purpose entities in accordance with
FAS No. 140.

Stock-based Compensation
We have several stock-based employee compensation plans that
we account for using the intrinsic value method under the recog-
nition and measurement principles of Accounting Principles
Board (APB) Opinion No. 25, “Accounting for Stock Issued to
Employees.” Accordingly, we do not reflect stock-based employee
compensation cost in net income for our Stock Option Program,
the Supplemental Executive Stock Option awards or the Stock
Purchase Plan. We recognized stock-based employee compensa-
tion cost of $19 million, $9 million and $19 million, net of tax,
for deferred share grants, restricted share grants and restricted
stock units (2003 only) for 2003, 2002 and 2001, respectively.
The following table illustrates the effect on net income and
earnings per share if we had applied the fair value recognition pro-
visions of FAS No. 123, “Accounting for Stock-Based Compensa-
tion,” to stock-based employee compensation. We have included
the impact of measured but unrecognized compensation cost and

excess tax benefits credited to additional paid-in-capital in the cal-
culation of the diluted pro forma shares for all years presented.

($ in millions, except per share amounts) 2003 2002 2001
$ 502 $277 $236

Net income, as reported
Add: Stock-based employee
compensation expense included
in reported net income, net of
related tax effects 19 9 19
Deduct: Total stock-based employee
compensation expense determined
under fair value-based method for

all awards, net of related tax effects (73) (64) (68)
Pro forma net income $ 448 $ 222 $187
Earnings per share:

Basic - as reported $2.16 $1.15 $.97
Basic - pro forma $1.93 $ .93 $.77
Diluted - as reported $2.05 $1.10 $.92
Diluted - pro forma $1.84 $ .90 $ .74

2. RELATIONSHIP WITH MAJOR CUSTOMER

The revenues and financial results we recognized from lodging
properties owned/leased by Host Marriott Corporation are
shown in the following table:

(8 in millions) 2003 2002 2001
Revenues $2,357 $2,400 $2,265
Lodging financial results 141 145 169

Additionally, Host Marriott Corporation is a general partner
in several unconsolidated partnerships that own lodging proper-
ties operated by us under long-term agreements. The sales, lodg-
ing financial results and land rent income recognized by the
Company are shown in the following table:

(8 in millions) 2003 2002 2001
Revenues $329 $387 $520
Lodging financial results, including

equity in earnings (losses) 7 29 55
Land rent income 18 18 19

In December 2000, we acquired 120 Courtyard by Marriott
hotels, through an unconsolidated joint venture (the Courtyard
Joint Venture) with an affiliate of Host Marriott Corporation.
Prior to the formation of the Courtyard Joint Venture, Host
Marriott Corporation was a general partner in the unconsoli-
dated partnerships that owned the 120 Courtyard by Marriott
hotels. Amounts recognized from lodging properties owned by
unconsolidated partnerships discussed above include the follow-
ing amounts related to these 120 Courtyard hotels:

(8 in millions) 2003 2002 2001
Revenues $268 $267 $282
Lodging financial results, including

equity in earnings (losses) 3 16 32
Land rent income 18 18 18
Interest income 31 27 26
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In connection with the formation of the Courtyard Joint
Venture we made a loan to the joint venture. The balance on our
mezzanine loan to the Courtyard Joint Venture was $215 million
and $184 million as of January 2, 2004, and January 3, 2003,
respectively. The proceeds of the mezzanine loan have not been,
and will not be, used to pay our management fees, debt service,
or land rent income. All management fees relating to the under-
lying hotels that we recognize in income are paid to us in cash
by the Courtyard Joint Venture.

We have provided Host Marriott Corporation with financing
for a portion of the cost of acquiring properties to be operated
or franchised by us, and may continue to provide financing to
Host Marriott Corporation in the future. The outstanding prin-
cipal balance of these loans was $3 million and $5 million at
January 2, 2004, and January 3, 2003, respectively, and we rec-
ognized less than $1 million in 2003 and $1 million in each of
2002 and 2001 in interest and fee income under these credit
agreements with Host Marriott Corporation.

We have guaranteed the performance of Host Marriott
Corporation and certain of its affiliates to lenders and other third
parties. These guarantees were limited to $9 million at January 2,
2004. We have made no payments pursuant to these guarantees.
We lease land to the Courtyard Joint Venture that had an aggre-
gate book value of $184 million at January 2, 2004. This land
has been pledged to secure debt of the lessees. We are currently
deferring receipt of rentals on this land to permit the lessees to
meet their debt service requirements.

3. NOTES RECEIVABLE

(8 in mallions) 2003 2002
Loans to timeshare owners $ 167 $ 169
Lodging senior loans 110 320
Lodging mezzanine and other loans 886 624
1,163 1,113
Less current portion (64) (72)
$1,099 $1,041

Lodging mezzanine and other loans include the loan to the
Courtyard Joint Venture of $215 million and $184 million,
respectively, at January 2, 2004, and January 3, 2003. The lodg-
ing mezzanine and other loans at January 2, 2004, also include
the $92 million loan we provided to CNL Retirement Properties,
Inc. (CNL) in connection with the sale of our senior living serv-
ices business and a $20 million note receivable in connection
with our sale of the 50.1 percent interest in the synthetic fuel
operation. Amounts due within one year are classified as current
assets in the accompanying consolidated balance sheet, including
$15 million and $16 million, respectively, as of January 2, 2004,
and January 3, 2003, related to the loans to timeshare owners.

Interest income on notes receivable is recognized on an
accrual basis unless the note is impaired.

Our notes receivable are due as follows: 2004 — $64 million;
2005 - $50 million; 2006 — $250 million; 2007 — $182 million;
2008 — $143 million; and $474 million thereafter.

4. PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

(8 in millions) 2003 2002
Land $ 424 $ 381
Buildings and leasehold improvements 606 531
Furniture and equipment 680 665
Timeshare properties 1,286 1,270
Construction in progress 74 180
3,070 3,027
Accumulated depreciation and amortization (657) (467)
$2,513 $2,560

We record property and equipment at cost, including interest,
rent and real estate taxes incurred during development and con-
struction. Interest capitalized as a cost of property and equip-
ment totaled $25 million in 2003, $43 million in 2002 and
$61 million in 2001. We capitalize the cost of improvements that
extend the useful life of property and equipment when incurred.
These capitalized costs may include structural costs, equipment,
fixtures, floor and wall coverings and paint. All repair and main-
tenance costs are expensed as incurred. We compute deprecia-
tion using the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives
of the assets (three to 40 years). Depreciation expense, including
amounts related to discontinued operations, totaled $132 million
in 2003, $145 million in 2002, and $142 million in 2001. We
amortize leasehold improvements over the shorter of the asset
life or lease term.

5. ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSITIONS

In 2003, we sold three lodging properties for $138 million in cash,
net of transaction costs. We accounted for the three property sales
under the full accrual method in accordance with FAS No. 66, and
we will continue to operate the properties under long-term man-
agement agreements. The buyer of one property leased the prop-
erty for a term of 20 years to a consolidated joint venture between
the buyer and us. The lease payments are fixed for the first five
years and variable thereafter. Our gain on the sale of approxi-
mately $6 million will be recognized on a straight-line basis in pro-
portion to the gross rental charged to expense. The $4 million
gain on the sale of the other two properties is deferred until cer-
tain contingencies in the sales contract expire. During the year, we
also sold three parcels of land for $10 million in cash, net of trans-
action costs, and recognized a pre-tax loss of $1 million.

During 2003 we also sold our interests in three international
joint ventures for approximately $25 million. In connection with
the sales we recorded pre-tax gains of approximately $21 million.

In 2002, we sold three lodging properties and six pieces of
undeveloped land for $330 million in cash. We will continue to
operate two of the hotels under long-term management agree-
ments. We accounted for two of the three property sales under
the full accrual method in accordance with FAS No. 66. The
buyer did not make adequate minimum initial investments in
the remaining property, which we accounted for under the cost
recovery method. The sale of one of the properties was to a
joint venture in which we have a minority interest and was sold
at a loss. We recognized no pre-tax gains in 2003 and $6 mil-
lion of pre-tax gains in 2002 and will recognize the remaining
$51 million of pre-tax gains in subsequent years, provided
certain contingencies in the sales contracts expire.
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In 2002, we also sold our 11 percent investment in Interval
International, a timeshare exchange company, for approximately
$63 million. In connection with the transaction, we recorded a
pre-tax gain of $44 million.

In 2001, we agreed to sell 18 lodging properties and three
pieces of undeveloped land for $682 million. We continue to
operate 17 of the lodging properties under long-term management
agreements. In 2001, we closed on 11 properties and three pieces
of undeveloped land for $470 million, and in 2002, we closed on
the remaining seven properties for $212 million. We accounted
for six of the 18 property sales under the full accrual method in
accordance with FAS No. 66. The buyers did not make adequate
minimum initial investments in the remaining 12 properties,
which we accounted for under the cost recovery method. Two
of the properties were sold to joint ventures in which we have a
minority interest. Where the full accrual method applied, we rec-
ognized profit proportionate to the outside interests in the joint
venture at the date of sale. We recognized $6 million of pre-tax
profit in 2003, $2 million of pre-tax profit in 2002, $2 million of
pre-tax losses in 2001 and will recognize the remaining $9 million
of pre-tax deferred gains in subsequent years, provided certain
contingencies in the sales contracts expire.

In 2001, in connection with the sale of four of the above
lodging properties, we agreed to transfer 31 existing lodging
property leases to a subsidiary of the lessor and subsequently
enter into agreements with the new lessee to operate the hotels
under long-term management agreements. These properties were
previously sold and leased back by us in 1997, 1998 and 1999.
As of January 2, 2004, 24 of these leases had been transferred,
and pre-tax gains of $8 million and $5 million previously
deferred on the sale of these properties were recognized when
our lease obligations ceased in 2003 and 2002, respectively.

In 2001, we sold land for $71 million to a joint venture at
book value. The joint venture built two resort hotels in Orlando,
Florida, that opened in the third quarter of 2003. As of January 2,
2004, we held approximately $126 million in mezzanine loans
that we have advanced to the joint venture. We have provided
the venture with additional credit facilities for certain amounts
due under the first mortgage loan. We accounted for the sale
of the land as a financing transaction in accordance with FAS
No. 66 as it did not meet the criteria for sale accounting.

In 2001, we sold and leased back one lodging property for
$15 million in cash, which generated a pre-tax gain of $2 million.
We will recognize this gain as a reduction of rent expense over
the initial lease term.

In 2001, we sold 100 percent of our limited partner interests
in five affordable housing partnerships and 85 percent of our lim-
ited partner interest in a sixth affordable housing partnership for
$82 million in cash. We recognized pre-tax gains of $13 million in
connection with four of the sales. We will recognize pre-tax gains
of $3 million related to the other two sales in subsequent years
provided certain contingencies in the sales contract expire.

In connection with the long-term, limited-recourse leases
described above, the Company has guaranteed the lease obliga-
tions of the tenants, wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Company
for a limited period of time (generally three to five years). After
the guarantees expire, the lease obligations become non-recourse
to the Company.

In sales transactions where we retain a management con-
tract, the terms and conditions of the management contract are
comparable to the terms and conditions of the management
contracts obtained directly with third-party owners in competi-
tive bid processes.

Synthetic Fuel

During the third quarter of 2003, we completed the sale of an
approximately 50 percent interest in the synthetic fuel operation.
We received cash and promissory notes totaling $25 million at
closing, and we are receiving additional profits that are expected
to continue over the life of the venture based on the actual
amount of tax credits allocated to the purchaser. See footnote 8
for further discussion.

Senior Living Services — Discontinued Operations

In 2003, in accordance with definitive agreements entered into on
December 30, 2002, to sell our senior living management busi-
ness to Sunrise Senior Living, Inc. (“Sunrise”) and to sell nine
senior living communities to CNL, we completed those sales

(in addition to the related sale of a parcel of land to Sunrise) for
$266 million and recognized a gain, net of taxes, of $23 million.
In addition, in 2003 we sold 14 Brighton Gardens assisted living
communities to CNL for approximately $184 million. We pro-
vided a $92 million acquisition loan to CNL in connection with
the sale. Sunrise currently operates and will continue to operate
the 14 communities under long-term management agreements.
‘We accounted for the sale in accordance with FAS No. 66 and
recorded a gain, net of taxes, of $1 million. See footnote 9,
“Assets Held for Sale — Discontinued Operations.”

6. TIMESHARE NOTE SALES

‘We periodically sell, with limited recourse, through special pur-
pose entities, notes receivable originated by our timeshare busi-
ness in connection with the sale of timeshare intervals. We
continue to service the notes and transfer all proceeds collected
to special purpose entities. We retain servicing assets and other
interests in the notes which are accounted for as residual inter-
ests. The interests are limited to the present value of cash
available after paying financing expenses, program fees, and
absorbing credit losses. We have included gains from the sales of
timeshare notes receivable totaling $64 million in 2003, $60 mil-
lion in 2002 and $40 million in 2001 in gains and other income
in the consolidated statement of income.

At the date of sale and at the end of each reporting period, we
estimate the fair value of the residual interests, including servicing
assets, using a discounted cash flow model. These transactions uti-
lize interest rate swaps to protect the net interest margin associated
with the beneficial interest. We report changes in the fair value of
the residual interests that are treated as available-for-sale securities
under the provisions of FAS No. 115, “Accounting for Certain
Investments in Debt and Equity Securities,” through other compre-
hensive income in the accompanying consolidated balance sheet.
‘We report in income changes in the fair value of residual interests
treated as trading securities under the provisions of FAS No. 115.
We used the following key assumptions to measure the fair value
of the residual interests at the date of sale during the years ended
January 2, 2004, January 3, 2003, and December 28, 2001: aver-
age discount rate of 4.95 percent, 5.69 percent and 6.89 percent,
respectively; average expected annual prepayments, including
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defaults, of 17.00 percent, 16.41 percent and 15.38 percent, respec-
tively; expected weighted average life of prepayable notes receiv-
able, excluding prepayments and defaults, of 85 months, 69
months and 70 months, respectively; and expected weighted aver-
age life of prepayable notes receivable, including prepayments and
defaults, of 44 months, 42 months and 44 months, respectively.
Our key assumptions are based on experience.

We used the following key assumptions in measuring the fair
value of the residual interests for our four outstanding note sales at
January 2, 2004. The fair value of the residual interests is $203 mil-
lion and reflects an average discount rate of 5.62 percent; an aver-
age expected annual prepayment rate, including defaults, of
17.00 percent; an expected weighted average life of prepayable notes
receivable, excluding prepayments and defaults, of 63 months;
and an expected weighted average life of prepayable notes receiv-
able, including prepayments and defaults of 37 months.

Cash flows between us and third-party purchasers during the
years ended January 2, 2004, January 3, 2003, and December 28,
2001, were as follows: net proceeds to us from new timeshare
note sales of $231 million, $341 million and $199 million, respec-
tively; repurchases by us of defaulted loans (over 150 days over-
due) of $19 million, $16 million and $13 million, respectively;
servicing fees received by us of $3 million, $3 million, and $2 mil-
lion, respectively; and cash flows received from our retained inter-
ests of $47 million, $28 million and $30 million, respectively.

At January 2, 2004, $733 million of principal remains outstand-
ing in all sales in which we have a retained residual interest. Delin-
quencies of more than 90 days at January 2, 2004, amounted to
$3 million. Losses on defaulted loans that were resolved during
the year ended January 2, 2004, net of recoveries, amounted to
$9 million. We have been able to resell timeshare units underlying
defaulted loans without incurring material losses.

On November 21, 2002, we repurchased notes receivable
with a principal balance of $381 million and immediately sold
$365 million of those notes, along with $135 million of addi-
tional notes, in a $500 million sale to an investor group. We have
included net proceeds from these transactions of $89 million,
including repayments of interest rate swaps on the $381 million
of repurchased notes receivable, in the net proceeds from new
timeshare note sales disclosed above. We realized a gain of
$14 million, primarily associated with the $135 million of addi-
tional notes sold, which is included in the $60 million gain on
the sales of notes receivable for fiscal year 2002 disclosed above.

We have completed a stress test on the fair value of the resid-
ual interests including servicing assets with the objective of meas-
uring the change in value associated with independent changes
in individual key variables. The methodology used applied unfa-
vorable changes that would be considered statistically significant
for the key variables of prepayment rate, discount rate, and
weighted average remaining term. The fair value of the residual
interests including servicing assets was $203 million at January 2,
2004, before any stress test changes were applied. An increase of
100 basis points in the prepayment rate would decrease the year-
end valuation by $3 million, or 2 percent, and an increase of 200
basis points in the prepayment rate would decrease the year-end
valuation by $6 million, or 3 percent. An increase of 100 basis
points in the discount rate would decrease the year-end valuation
by $4 million, or 2 percent, and an increase of 200 basis points
in the discount rate would decrease the year-end valuation by

$8 million, or 4 percent. A decline of two months in the
weighted-average remaining term would decrease the year-end
valuation by $2 million, or 1 percent, and a decline of four
months in the weighted-average remaining term would decrease
the year-end valuation by $4 million, or 2 percent.

7. MARRIOTT AND CENDANT CORPORATION
JOINT VENTURE
In the first quarter of 2002, Marriott and Cendant completed the
formation of a joint venture to further develop and expand the
Ramada and Days Inn brands in the United States. We con-
tributed the domestic Ramada license agreements and related
intellectual property to the joint venture at their carrying value
of approximately $200 million. Cendant contributed the Days
Inn license agreement and related intellectual property with a
fair value of approximately $205 million. We each own approxi-
mately 50 percent of the joint venture, with Gendant having the
slightly larger interest. We account for our interest in the joint
venture using the equity method. The joint venture can be dis-
solved at any time with the consent of both members and is
scheduled to terminate in March 2012. In the event of dissolu-
tion, the joint venture’s assets will generally be distributed in
accordance with each member’s capital account. In addition,
during certain periods of time commencing in March 2004,
first Cendant and later Marriott will have a brief opportunity to
cause a mandatory redemption of Marriott’s joint venture equity.

8. SYNTHETIC FUEL
In October 2001, we acquired four coal-based synthetic fuel pro-
duction facilities (the “Facilities”) for $46 million in cash. The syn-
thetic fuel produced at the Facilities through 2007 qualifies for tax
credits based on Section 29 of the Internal Revenue Code (credits
are not available for fuel produced after 2007). We began operat-
ing these Facilities in the first quarter of 2002. Operation of the
Facilities, together with the benefit arising from the tax credits, has
been, and we expect will continue to be, significantly accretive to
our net income. Although the Facilities produce significant losses,
these are more than offset by the tax credits generated under
Section 29, which reduce our income tax expense. In fiscal year
2003, our synthetic fuel operation reflected sales of $302 million,
equity income of $10 million, and an operating loss of $104 mil-
lion, resulting in a tax benefit of $245 million, including tax credits
of $211 million, offset by minority interest expense of $55 million.
On June 21, 2003, we completed the previously announced sale
of an approximately 50 percent ownership interest in the synthetic
fuel operation. We received cash and promissory notes totaling
$25 million at closing, and we are receiving additional profits that we
expect will continue over the life of the venture based on the actual
amount of tax credits allocated to the purchaser. We earned $56 mil-
lion of such additional profits in 2003. Certain post-closing condi-
tions, including our receipt of satisfactory private letter rulings from
the Internal Revenue Service, were satisfied during the fourth quar-
ter. Those rulings confirm, among other things, both that the process
used by our synthetic fuel operations produces a “qualified fuel” as
required by Section 29 of the Internal Revenue Code and the valid-
ity of the ownership structure of the joint venture with the purchaser
of a 50 percent interest in our synthetic fuel operation. After review-
ing the private letter rulings, the purchaser informed us in writing
that it would not be exercising a one-time “put option,” which would
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potentially have allowed it to return its ownership interest to us if sat-
isfactory rulings had not been obtained prior to December 15, 2003.

As a result of the put option, we continued to consolidate the
synthetic fuel operation through November 6, 2003. Effective
November 7, 2003, because the put option was voided, we account
for the synthetic fuel joint venture using the equity method of
accounting. The $24 million of additional profits we received from
the joint venture partner beginning November 7, 2003, along with
our share of the equity in losses of the synthetic fuel joint venture,
are reflected in the income statement under Equity in earnings/
(losses) from synthetic fuel. The additional profits earned prior to
November 7, 2003, along with the revenue generated from the pre-
viously consolidated synthetic fuel joint venture, are included in
synthetic fuel revenue in the income statement.

9. ASSETS HELD FOR SALE —
DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

Senior Living Services

In December 2001, management approved and committed to a plan
to exit the companion living concept of senior living services and
sell the related properties within the next 12 months. We recorded
an impairment charge of $60 million to adjust the carrying value of
the properties to their estimated fair value for the year ended
December 28, 2001. On October 1, 2002, we completed the sale of
these properties for $62 million which exceeded our previous esti-
mate of fair value by $11 million. We included the $11 million gain
in discontinued operations for the year ended January 3, 2003.

In the second quarter of 2002, we sold five senior living com-
munities for $59 million. We ceased operations of these commu-
nities under long-term management agreements after the sale of
the business to Sunrise. We accounted for these sales under the
full accrual method in accordance with FAS No. 66. We continue
to provide an operating profit guarantee to the buyer, and fund-
ings under that guarantee are applied against the initial deferred
gain of $6 million. As of January 2, 2004, the remaining deferred
gain was $3 million.

On December 17, 2002, we sold 12 senior living communities
to CNL for approximately $89 million. We accounted for the
sale under the full accrual method in accordance with FAS No.
66; and we recorded an after-tax loss of approximately $13 mil-
lion. On December 30, 2002, we entered into a definitive agree-
ment to sell our senior living management business to Sunrise
and to sell nine senior living communities to GNL. We com-
pleted the sales to Sunrise and CNL in addition to the related
sale of a parcel of land to Sunrise in March 2003 for $266 mil-
lion and recognized a gain, net of taxes, of $23 million.

Also, on December 30, 2002, we purchased 14 senior living
communities for approximately $15 million in cash, plus the
assumption of $227 million in debt, from an unrelated owner. We
had previously agreed to provide a form of credit enhancement
on the outstanding debt related to these communities. Manage-
ment approved and committed to a plan to sell these communities
within 12 months. As part of that plan, on March 31, 2003, we
acquired all of the subordinated credit-enhanced mortgage securi-
ties relating to the 14 communities in a transaction in which we
issued $46 million of unsecured Marriott International, Inc. notes,
due April 2004. In the 2003 third quarter, we sold the 14 commu-
nities to CNL for approximately $184 million. We provided a

$92 million acquisition loan to CNL in connection with the sale.
Sunrise currently operates, and will continue to operate, the 14
communities under long-term management agreements. We
recorded a gain, net of taxes, of $1 million.

For the year ended January 3, 2003, we had recorded an after-
tax charge of $131 million associated with our agreement to sell
our senior living management business. Accordingly, the operating
results of our Senior Living segment are reported in discontinued
operations during the years ended January 2, 2004, January 3,
2003 and December 28, 2001, and the remaining assets and Liabili-
ties were classified as assets held for sale and labilities of businesses
held for sale, respectively, on the balance sheet at January 3, 2003.
There were no assets or liabilities remaining at January 2, 2004.

The following table provides additional income statement
and balance sheet information relating to the Senior Living
Services business:

(8 in millions) 2003 2002 2001
Income Statement Summary

Sales $184 $ 802 $729
Pretax income (loss) on operations $ 11 $ 37 $ 45)
Tax (provision) benefit @) (14) 16
Income (loss) on operations, net of tax ~ $ 7 $ 23 $ (29
Pretax gain (loss) on disposal $ 31 $(141) $ -
Tax (provision) benefit (12) 10 -
Gain (loss) on disposal, net of tax $ 19 $(131) $ -
Balance Sheet Summary

Property, plant and equipment $ - $ 434 $495
Goodwill - 115 115
Other assets - 54 63
Liabilities - 317 281

The tax benefit in 2002 of $10 million associated with the
loss on disposal includes $45 million of additional taxes related
to goodwill with no tax basis.

Distribution Services

In the third quarter of 2002, we completed a previously
announced strategic review of our Distribution Services business
and decided to exit that business. We completed that exit during
the fourth quarter of 2002 through a combination of transferring
certain facilities, closing other facilities and other suitable
arrangements. In the year ended January 3, 2003, we recognized
a pretax charge of $65 million in connection with the decision to
exit this business. The charge includes: (1) $15 million for pay-
ments to third parties to subsidize their assumption of, or in
some cases to terminate, existing distribution or warehouse lease
contracts; (2) $9 million for severance costs; (3) $10 million
related to the adjusting of fixed assets to net realizable values;
(4) $2 million related to inventory losses; (5) $15 million for
losses on equipment leases; (6) $10 million for losses on ware-
house leases; and (7) $4 million of other associated charges. For
the year ended January 2, 2004, we incurred exit costs, net of
tax, of $2 million, primarily related to ongoing compensation
costs associated with the wind down. We also reversed $2 mil-
lion, net of tax, for previously estimated exit costs, which we
deemed no longer necessary.
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The following table provides additional income statement
and balance sheet information relating to the Distribution
Services business:

(8 in millions) 2003 2002 2001
Income Statement Summary

Sales $— $1,376  $1,637
Pretax loss from operations $— $ 2 $ (6
Tax benefit - 10 2
Loss on operations, net of tax $— $ 149 $ @
Pretax exit costs $— $ 65 $ -
Tax benefit - 25 -
Exit costs, net of tax $— $ @) $ -
Balance Sheet Summary

Property, plant and equipment $— $ 9 $ 25
Other assets - 21 191
Liabilities - 49 86
Other Assets Held for Sale

Included in assets held for sale at January 3, 2003, is $31 million,
representing one full-service lodging property, which was subse-

quently sold in July 2003 for $39 million, subject to a long-term
management agreement. Included in liabilities of businesses held
for sale at January 3, 2003, is $24 million of liabilities related to

the full-service lodging property held for sale.

10. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

(8 in millions) 2003 2002
Management, franchise and license agreements $ 730 $ 673
Goodwill 1,051 1,052
1,781 1,795
Accumulated amortization (332) (307)
$1,449 $1,418

We amortize intangible assets on a straight-line basis over
periods of three to 40 years. Intangible amortization expense,
including amounts related to discontinued operations, totaled
$28 million in 2003, $42 million in 2002 and $80 million in 2001.

In the fourth quarter of 2002, we performed the annual good-

will impairment tests required by FAS No. 142. During the
fourth quarter of 2002, we continued to experience softness in
demand for corporate housing, and the ExecuStay business
results did not start to recover as previously anticipated, particu-
larly in New York. Additionally, we decided to convert certain
geographical markets to franchises, which we anticipate will
result in more stable, albeit lower, profit growth. Due to the
increased focus on franchising, the continued weak operating
environment, and a consequent delay in the expectations for
recovery of this business from the current operating environ-
ment, we recorded a $50 million pretax charge in the fourth
quarter of 2002. In calculating this impairment charge, we esti-
mated the fair value of the ExecuStay reporting unit using a
combination of discounted cash flow methodology and recent
comparable transactions. We again performed an impairment
test in 2003 and determined that no impairment charge was nec-
essary for the 2003 fiscal year.

11. SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY

Eight hundred million shares of our Class A Gommon Stock,
with a par value of $.01 per share, are authorized. Ten million
shares of preferred stock, without par value, are authorized,
200,000 shares have been issued, 100,000 of which were for the
Employee Stock Ownership Plan (ESOP) and 100,000 of which
were for Gapped Convertible Preferred Stock. As of January 2,
2004, there were no outstanding shares of the ESOP stock, and
all the shares of the Capped Convertible Preferred Stock shares
were retired and cancelled.

On March 27, 1998, our Board of Directors adopted a share-
holder rights plan under which one preferred stock purchase right
was distributed for each share of our Class A Common Stock.
Each right entitles the holder to buy 1/1000th of a share of a newly
issued series of junior participating preferred stock of the Company
at an exercise price of $175. The rights may not presently be exer-
cised, but will be exercisable 10 days after a person or group
acquires beneficial ownership of 20 percent or more of our Class A
Common Stock, or begins a tender or exchange for 30 percent or
more of our Class A Common Stock. Shares owned by a person or
group on March 27, 1998, and held continuously thereafter, are
exempt for purposes of determining beneficial ownership under the
rights plan. The rights are nonvoting and will expire on the tenth
anniversary of the adoption of the shareholder rights plan, unless
previously exercised or redeemed by us for $.01 each. If we are
mnvolved in a merger or certain other business combinations not
approved by the Board of Directors, each right entitles its holder,
other than the acquiring person or group, to purchase common
stock of either the Company or the acquirer having a value of
twice the exercise price of the right.

During the second quarter of 2000 we established an Employee
Stock Ownership Plan (ESOP) solely to fund employer contribu-
tions to the profit sharing plan. The ESOP acquired 100,000 shares
of special-purpose Company convertible preferred stock (ESOP
Preferred Stock) for $1 billion. The ESOP Preferred Stock has a
stated value and liquidation preference of $10,000 per share, pays a
quarterly dividend of 1 percent of the stated value, and is convert-
ible into our Class A Common Stock at any time based on the
amount of our contributions to the ESOP and the market price of
the common stock on the conversion date, subject to certain caps
and a floor price. We hold a note from the ESOP, which is elimi-
nated upon consolidation, for the purchase price of the ESOP
Preferred Stock. The shares of ESOP Preferred Stock are pledged
as collateral for the repayment of the ESOP’s note, and those
shares are released from the pledge as principal on the note is
repaid. Shares of ESOP Preferred Stock released from the pledge
may be redeemed for cash based on the value of the common
stock into which those shares may be converted. Principal and
interest payments on the ESOP’s debt were forgiven periodically
to fund contributions to the ESOP and release shares of ESOP
Preferred Stock. Unearned ESOP shares have been reflected
within shareholders’ equity and are amortized as shares of ESOP
Preferred Stock are released and cash is allocated to employees’
accounts. The fair market value of the unearned ESOP shares at
December 28, 2001, was $263 million. The last of the shares of
ESOP Preferred Stock were released to fund contributions as of
July 18, 2002, at which time the remainder of the principal and
interest due on the ESOP’s note was forgiven. As of January 2,
2004, there were no outstanding shares of ESOP Preferred Stock.
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Accumulated other comprehensive loss of $41 million and
$70 million at January 2, 2004, and January 3, 2003, respec-
tively, consists primarily of fair value changes of certain financial
mstruments and foreign currency translation adjustments.

12. INCOME TAXES
Total deferred tax assets and liabilities as of January 2, 2004, and
January 3, 2003, were as follows:

The current tax provision does not reflect the benefits attrib-
utable to us relating to our ESOP of $70 million in 2002 or the
exercise of employee stock options of $40 million in 2003, $25
million in 2002 and $55 million in 2001. The taxes applicable to
other comprehensive income are not material.

A reconciliation of the U.S. statutory tax rate to our effective
income tax rate for continuing operations follows:

2003 2002 2001
(8 in millions) 2003 2002 U.S. statutory tax rate 35.0 % 35.0 % 35.0 %
Deferred tax assets $ 797 $717 State income taxes, net of
Deferred tax liabilities (331) (348) U.S. tax benefit 3.8 4.0 3.7
Net deferred taxes $466  $369  Torcignincome (L1) (1.5) 2.9)
Reduction of valuation allowance (3.2) - -

The tax effect of each type of temporary difference and carry Tax credits (43.9) (34.8) (3.6)
forward that gives rise to a significant portion of deferred tax Goodwill — 3.6 25
assets and liabilities as of January 2, 2004, and January 3, 2003, Other, net 0.6 0.5 1.4
were as follows: Effective rate (8.8)% 6.8 % 36.1 %
(8 in millions) 2003 2002 Cash paid for income taxes, net of refunds, was $144 million
Self-insurance $ 20 $ 35 in 2003, $107 million in 2002 and $125 million in 2001.
Employee benefits 170 162
Deferred income 81 52 13. LEASES
O'ther reserves 81 70 ‘We have summarized our future obligations under operating
Disposition reserves 11 73 leases at January 2, 2004, below:
Frequent guest program 56 64
Tax credits 198 122 Fiscal Year ($ in millions)
Net operating loss carryforwards 42 42 2004 $ 147
Timeshare operations 8) (18) 2005 149
Property, equipment and intangible assets (125) (136) 2006 134
Other, net (23) (44) 2007 145
Deferred taxes 503 422 2008 145
Less: Valuation allowance (37) (53) Thereafter 1,066
Net Deferred Taxes $ 466 $ 369 Total minimum lease payments $1,786

At January 2, 2004, we had approximately $42 million of tax
credits that expire through 2023, $156 million of tax credits that
do not expire and $42 million of net operating losses that expire
through 2022.

We have made no provision for U.S. income taxes or addi-
tional foreign taxes on the cumulative unremitted earnings of
non-U.S. subsidiaries ($298 million as of January 2, 2004) because
we consider these earnings to be permanently invested. These
earnings could become subject to additional taxes if remitted as
dividends, loaned to us or a U.S. affiliate or if we sell our interests
in the affiliates. We cannot practically estimate the amount of addi-
tional taxes that might be payable on the unremitted earnings.

The benefit (provision) for income taxes consists of:

(8 in millions) 2003 2002 2001
Current — Federal $ 5 $(129) $(138)
— State (28) (42) 17)

— Foreign (25) (31) (21)

(48) (202) (176)

Deferred — Federal 73 146 28
— State 2 24 4)

— Foreign 16 - -

91 170 24

$ 43 $ (32 $(152)

Most leases have initial terms of up to 20 years and contain
one or more renewal options, generally for five- or 10-year peri-
ods. These leases provide for minimum rentals and additional
rentals based on our operations of the leased property. The total
minimum lease payments above include $623 million represent-
ing obligations of consolidated subsidiaries that are non-recourse
to Marriott International, Inc.

Rent expense consists of:

(8 in millions) 2003 2002 2001
Minimum rentals $134 $131 $131
Additional rentals 68 75 87

$202 $206 $218

The totals above exclude minimum rent expenses of $8 mil-
lion, $34 million and $33 million, and additional rent expenses of
$1 million, $4 million and $4 million, for 2003, 2002 and 2001,
respectively, related to the discontinued Senior Living Services
business. The totals also do not include minimum rent expenses
of $42 million and $20 million for 2002 and 2001, respectively,
related to the discontinued Distribution Services business.
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14. LONG-TERM DEBT
Our long-term debt at January 2, 2004, and January 3, 2003,
consisted of the following:

(8 in millions) 2003 2002
Senior Notes:
Series A, matured November 15, 2003 $ - $ 200
Series B, interest rate of 6.875%,
maturing November 15, 2005 200 200
Series C, interest rate of 7.875%,
maturing September 15, 2009 299 299
Series D, interest rate of 8.125%,
maturing April 1, 2005 275 300
Series E, interest rate of 7.0%),
maturing January 15, 2008 293 299
Other senior notes, interest rate of 3.114%
at January 2, 2004, maturing April 1, 2004 46 3
Commercial paper, average interest rate
of 2.1% at January 3, 2003 — 102
Mortgage debt, interest rate of 7.9%,
maturing May 1, 2025 178 181
Other 102 129
LYONs 62 61
1,455 1,774
Less current portion (64) (221)
$1,391  $1,553

As of January 2, 2004, all debt, other than mortgage debt and
$11 million of other debt, is unsecured.

We have $500 million available for future offerings under “uni-
versal shelf” registration statements we have filed with the SEC.

In January 2001, we issued, through a private placement,
$300 million of 7 percent Series E Notes due 2008, and received
net proceeds of $297 million. On January 15, 2002, we com-
pleted a registered exchange offer to exchange these notes for
publicly registered new notes on substantially identical terms.

We are party to two multicurrency revolving credit facilities
that provide for aggregate borrowings of up to $2 billion; a
$1.5 billion facility entered into in July 2001 which expires in
July 2006; and a $500 million facility entered into in August
2003 which expires in August 2006. Borrowings under the facili-
ties bear interest at LIBOR plus a spread, based on our public
debt rating. Additionally, we pay annual fees on the facilities
at a rate also based on our public debt rating. We classify com-
mercial paper, which is supported by the facilities, as long-term
debt based on our ability and intent to refinance it on a long-
term basis.

We are in compliance with covenants in our loan agreements,
which require the maintenance of certain financial ratios and
minimum shareholders’ equity, and also include, among other
things, limitations on additional indebtedness and the pledging
of assets.

Our 2002 statement of cash flows does not include the
assumption of $227 million of debt associated with our acquisi-
tion of 14 senior living communities, the contribution of the
Ramada license agreements to the joint venture with Cendant at
their carrying value of approximately $200 million, and $23 mil-
lion of other joint venture investments. Our 2001 statement of
cash flows does not include $109 million of financing and joint
venture investments made by us in connection with asset sales.

Aggregate debt maturities are: 2004 — $64 million;

2005 - $495 million; 2006 — $13 million; 2007 — $10 million;
2008 - $303 million and $570 million thereafter.

Cash paid for interest (including discontinued operations),
net of amounts capitalized, was $94 million in 2003, $71 million
in 2002 and $68 million in 2001.

We have outstanding approximately $70 million in face
amount of our zero-coupon convertible senior notes known as
LYONs which are due in 2021. These LYONSs, which we issued
on May 8, 2001, are convertible into approximately 0.9 million
shares of our Class A Common Stock, and carry a yield to
maturity of 0.75 percent. We may redeem the LYONSs on or after
May 8, 2004. The holders may also at their option require us to
purchase the LYONS at their accreted value on May 8 of each of
2004, 2011 and 2016. We may choose to pay the purchase price
for redemptions or repurchases in cash and/or shares of our
Class A Common Stock. We classify LYONSs as long-term debt
based on our ability and intent to refinance the obligation with
long-term debt if we are required to repurchase the LYONS.

15. EARNINGS PER SHARE

The following table illustrates the reconciliation of the earnings
and number of shares used in the basic and diluted earnings per
share calculations.

(in millions, except per share amounts) 2003 2002 2001

Computation of Basic
Earnings Per Share

Income from continuing operations $476 $439 $269
Weighted average shares outstanding 232.5 2403 2433
Basic earnings per share from

continuing operations $2.05 $1.83 $1.10
Computation of Diluted
Earnings Per Share
Income from continuing operations $476 $439 $269
After-tax interest expense on

convertible debt = 4 -
Income from continuing operations for

diluted earnings per share $476 $443 $269
Weighted average shares outstanding 232.5 240.3 2433
Effect of dilutive securities

Employee stock purchase plan = - -

Employee stock option plan 6.6 6.2 7.9

Deferred stock incentive plan 48 52 5.5

Restricted stock units 0.6 - -
Convertible debt 0.9 2.9 -
Shares for diluted earnings per share 2454 2546  256.7
Diluted earnings per share from

continuing operations $1.94 $1.74 $1.05

We compute the effect of dilutive securities using the treasury
stock method and average market prices during the period. The
determination as to dilution is based on earnings from continu-
ing operations. In accordance with FAS No. 128 “Earnings per
Share,” the calculation of diluted earnings per share does not
include the following items because the option exercise prices
are greater than the average market price for our Class A
Common Stock for the applicable period: (a) for the year ended
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January 2, 2004, 5.7 million stock options; (b) for the year
ended January 3, 2003, 6.9 million stock options; and (c) for
the year ended December 28, 2001, 5.1 million stock options.

In addition to item (c) above, the calculation of diluted earn-
ings per share for the year ended December 28, 2001, also
excludes $5 million of after-tax interest expense on convertible
debt and 4.1 million shares issuable upon conversion of convert-
ible debt, as their inclusion would increase, rather than decrease,
diluted earnings per share.

16. EMPLOYEE STOCK PLANS

We issue stock options, deferred shares, restricted shares and
restricted stock units under our 2002 Comprehensive Stock and
Cash Incentive Plan (Comprehensive Plan). Under the Compre-
hensive Plan, we may award to participating employees (1) options
to purchase our Class A Common Stock (Stock Option Program
and Supplemental Executive Stock Option awards), (2) deferred
shares of our Class A Common Stock, (3) restricted shares of our
Class A Common Stock, and (4) restricted stock units of our
Class A Common Stock. In addition we have an employee stock
purchase plan (Stock Purchase Plan). In accordance with the provi-
sion of Opinion No. 25 of the Accounting Principles Board, we
recognize no compensation cost for the Stock Option Program, the
Supplemental Executive Stock Option awards or the Stock Pur-
chase Plan. We recognize compensation cost for the restricted
stock, deferred shares and restricted stock unit awards.

Deferred shares granted to directors, officers and key employ-
ees under the Comprehensive Plan generally vest over 5 to 10
years in annual installments commencing one year after the date
of grant. We accrue compensation expense for the fair market
value of the shares on the date of grant, less estimated forfei-
tures. We granted 0.1 million deferred shares during 2003.
Compensation cost, net of tax, recognized during 2003, 2002
and 2001 was $7 million, $6 million and $16 million, respec-
tively. At January 2, 2004, there was approximately $21 million
in deferred compensation related to deferred shares.

Restricted shares under the Comprehensive Plan are issued
to officers and key employees and distributed over a number of
years in annual installments, subject to certain prescribed condi-
tions including continued employment. We recognize compensa-
tion expense for the restricted shares over the restriction period
equal to the fair market value of the shares on the date of
issuance. We awarded 0.2 million restricted shares under this
plan during 2003. We recognized compensation cost, net of tax,
of $4 million in 2003, $3 million in 2002 and $3 million in 2001.
At January 2, 2004, there was approximately $16 million in
deferred compensation related to restricted shares.

Restricted stock units under the Comprehensive Plan are
issued to certain officers and key employees and vest over four
years in annual installments commencing one year after the date
of grant. We accrue compensation expense for the fair market
value of the shares on the date of grant. Included in the 2003
compensation costs is $8 million, net of tax, related to the grant
of approximately 1.9 million units under the restricted stock unit
plan which was started in the first quarter of 2003. At January 2,
2004, there was approximately $44 million in deferred compen-
sation related to unit grants. Under the unit plan, fixed grants
will be awarded annually to certain employees.

Under the Stock Purchase Plan, eligible employees may pur-
chase our Class A Common Stock through payroll deductions at
the lower of the market value at the beginning or end of each
plan year.

Employee stock options may be granted to officers and key
employees at exercise prices equal to the market price of our
Class A Common Stock on the date of grant. Nonqualified
options expire 10 years after the date of grant, except those
issued from 1990 through 2000, which expire 15 years after the
date of the grant. Most options under the Stock Option Program
are exercisable in cumulative installments of one quarter at the
end of each of the first four years following the date of grant. In
February 1997, 2.2 million Supplemental Executive Stock Option
awards were awarded to certain of our officers. The options vest
after eight years but could vest earlier if our stock price meets
certain performance criteria. None of these options, which have
an exercise price of $25, were exercised during 2003, 2002 or
2001 and 2.0 million remained outstanding at January 2, 2004.

For the purposes of the disclosures required by FAS No. 123,
“Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation,” the fair value of
each option granted during 2003, 2002 and 2001 was $11, $14
and $16, respectively. We estimated the fair value of each option
granted on the date of grant using the Black-Scholes option-pricing
method, using the assumptions noted in the following table:

2003 2002 2001
Annual dividends $0.30 $0.28 $0.26
Expected volatility 32% 32% 32%
Risk-free interest rate 3.5% 3.6% 4.9%
Expected life (in years) 7 7 7

Pro forma compensation cost for the Stock Option Program,
the Supplemental Executive Stock Option awards and employee
purchases pursuant to the Stock Purchase Plan subsequent to
December 30, 1994, would reduce our net income as described
in the “Summary of Significant Accounting Policies” as required
by FAS No. 148, “Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation-
Transition and Disclosure, an amendment of Financial
Accounting Standards Board (FASB) Statement No. 123

A summary of our Stock Option Program activity during
2003, 2002 and 2001 is presented below:

Number of Weighted
Options Average
(in millions)  Exercise Price
Outstanding at December 30, 2000 30.0 $23
Granted during the year 13.4 36
Exercised during the year 4.2 18
Forfeited during the year (0.9) 34
Outstanding at December 28, 2001 38.3 29
Granted during the year 1.4 37
Exercised during the year (1.6) 22
Forfeited during the year (0.6) 37
Outstanding at January 3, 2003 37.5 29
Granted during the year 4.0 30
Exercised during the year (4.6) 22
Forfeited during the year 0.7) 37
Outstanding at January 2, 2004 36.2 $29
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There were 25.1 million, 24.9 million and 20.2 million exercisable options under the Stock Option Program at January 2, 2004,
January 3, 2003, and December 28, 2001, respectively, with weighted average exercise prices of $28, $25 and $22, respectively.

At January 2, 2004, 55.1 million shares were reserved under the Comprehensive Plan (including 38.1 million shares under the

Stock Option Program and 1.9 million shares of the Supplemental Executive Stock Option awards) and 5.9 million shares were

reserved under the Stock Purchase Plan.

Stock options issued under the Stock Option Program outstanding at January 2, 2004, were as follows:

Outstanding Exercisable
Weighted Weighted Weighted
Range of Number of Average Average Number of Average
Exercise Options Remaining Life Exercise Options Exercise
Prices (in millions) (in years) Price (in millions) Price
$3t0 5 0.7 2 $3 0.7 $3
6to 9 1.5 4 7 1.5 7
10 to 15 2.2 6 13 2.2 13
16 to 24 1.5 7 17 1.5 17
25 to 37 23.6 9 31 15.9 31
38 to 49 6.7 8 44 3.3 45
$ 3to49 36.2 8 $30 25.1 $28

17. FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

We believe that the fair values of current assets and current lia-
bilities approximate their reported carrying amounts. The fair
values of noncurrent financial assets, liabilities and derivatives
are shown below.

2003 2002
Carrying Fair Carrying Fair
(8 in millions) Amount Value Amount Value
Notes and other receivables ~ $1,740  $1,778  $1,506  $1,514
Long-term debt and other
long-term liabilities $1,373  $1,487 $1,482 $1,556
Derivative instruments $ O $ @ %$ @ $ @

We value notes and other receivables based on the expected
future cash flows discounted at risk adjusted rates. We determine
valuations for long-term debt and other long-term liabilities
based on quoted market prices or expected future payments
discounted at risk adjusted rates.

18. DERIVATIVE INSTRUMENTS

During the year ended January 2, 2004, we entered into an inter-
est rate swap agreement under which we receive a floating rate
of interest and pay a fixed rate of interest. The swap modifies
our interest rate exposure by effectively converting a note receiv-
able with a fixed rate to a floating rate. The aggregate notional
amount of the swap is $92 million and it matures in 2010. The
swap is classified as a fair value hedge, and the change in the fair
value of the swap, as well as the change in the fair value of the
underlying note receivable, is recognized in interest income. The
fair value of the swap was a liability of approximately $3 million
at January 2, 2004. The hedge is highly effective and therefore
no net gain or loss was reported in earnings during the year
ended January 2, 2004.

At January 2, 2004, we had six outstanding interest rate
swap agreements to manage interest rate risk associated with the
residual interests we retain in conjunction with our timeshare
note sales. We are required by purchasers and/or rating agencies

to utilize interest rate swaps to protect the excess spread within
our sold note pools. The aggregate notional amount of the
swaps is $726 million, and they expire through 2022. These
swaps are not accounted for as hedges under FAS No. 133. The
fair value of the swaps is a net asset of approximately $1 million
at January 2, 2004, and a net liability of $2 million at January 3,
2003. We recorded $1 million, $21 million, and $8 million of
expense during the years ended January 2, 2004, January 3,
2003 and December 28, 2001, respectively. These expenses
were largely offset by income resulting from the change in fair
value of the retained interests and note sale gains in response to
changes in interest rates.

During the year ended January 2, 2004, we entered into an
Interest rate swap to manage interest rate risk associated with the
forecasted fourth quarter 2003 timeshare note sale. The swap
was not accounted for as a hedge under FAS No. 133. The swap
was terminated upon the sale of the notes and resulted in an
expense of $4 million during the year ended January 2, 2004,
which is reflected in the net $1 million expense stated above.

On December 31, 2003, we entered into 24 foreign exchange
option contracts to hedge the potential volatility of earnings and
cash flows associated with variations in foreign exchange rates
during fiscal year 2004. The aggregate dollar equivalent of the
notional amounts of the option contracts is approximately
$37 million, and the forward option contracts expire throughout
2004. The option contracts are classified as cash flow hedges,
and changes in fair value are recorded as a component of other
comprehensive income. The fair value of the forward contracts
is approximately $1 million at January 2, 2004. The hedges are
highly effective. There was no net gain or loss reported in earn-
ings during the year ended January 2, 2004, relating to similar
contracts that expired during that year.

During the year ended January 2, 2004, we entered into two
forward foreign exchange contracts to manage the foreign cur-
rency exposure related to certain monetary assets denominated
in Pound Sterling. The aggregate dollar equivalent of the
notional amounts of the forward contracts is $34 million at
January 2, 2004. The forward exchange contracts are not
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accounted for as hedges in accordance with FAS No. 133. The
fair value of the forward contracts is approximately zero at
January 2, 2004. We recorded approximately $2 million of
expense relating to these two forward foreign exchange contracts
during the year ended January 2, 2004. This expense was offset
by income recorded from translating the related monetary assets
denominated in Pound Sterling into U.S. dollars.

19. CONTINGENCIES

Guarantees, Loan Commitments and Letters of Credit
We issue guarantees to certain lenders and hotel owners prima-
rily to obtain long term management contracts. The guarantees
generally have a stated maximum amount of funding and a term
of five years or less. The terms of guarantees to lenders gener-
ally require us to fund if cash flows from hotel operations are
inadequate to cover annual debt service or to repay the loan at
the end of the term. The terms of the guarantees to hotel owners
generally require us to fund if the affected hotels do not attain
specified levels of operating profit.

We also enter into project completion guarantees with certain
lenders in conjunction with hotels and timeshare units that we
are building.

We also enter into guarantees in conjunction with the sale
of notes receivable originated by our timeshare business. These
guarantees have terms of between seven and ten years. The
terms of the guarantees require us to repurchase a limited
amount of non-performing loans under certain circumstances.

Our guarantees include $387 million related to Senior Living
Services lease obligations and lifecare bonds. Sunrise is the pri-
mary obligor of the leases and a portion of the lifecare bonds, and
CNL is the primary obligor of the remainder of the lifecare
bonds. Prior to the sale of the Senior Living Services business at
the end of the first quarter of 2003, these pre-existing guarantees
were guarantees by the Company of obligations of consolidated
Senior Living Services subsidiaries. Sunrise and CNL have indem-
nified us for any guarantee fundings we may be called on to make
in connection with these lease obligations and lifecare bonds. Our
guarantees also include $47 million of other guarantees associated
with the Sunrise sale transaction. As a result of the settlement with
Five Star, $41 million of these guarantees, included below, expired
subsequent to January 2, 2004.

The maximum potential amount of future fundings and the
carrying amount of the liability for expected future fundings at
January 2, 2004 are as follows:

Maximum Liability for

Amount of Future Fundings at
Guarantee Type Future Fundings January 2, 2004
(8 in millions)
Debt service $ 378 $12
Operating profit 312 21
Project completion 18 -
Timeshare 19 -
Senior Living Services 434 -
Other 40 3

$1,201 $36

Our guarantees listed above include $238 million for guaran-
tees that will not be in effect until the underlying hotels open
and we begin to manage the properties. The guarantee fundings
to lenders and hotel owners are generally recoverable as loans
and are generally repayable to us out of future hotel cash flows
and/or proceeds from the sale of hotels. When we repurchase
non-performing timeshare loans, we will either collect the out-
standing loan balance in full or foreclose on the asset and subse-
quently resell it.

As of January 2, 2004, we had extended approximately
$80 million of loan commitments to owners of lodging properties
under which we expect to fund approximately $44 million by
December 31, 2004, and $60 million in total. We do not expect
to fund the remaining $20 million of commitments, which expire
as follows: $8 million in one to three years; and $12 million after
five years.

Letters of credit outstanding on our behalf at January 2, 2004,
totaled $103 million, the majority of which related to our self-
insurance programs. Surety bonds issued on our behalf as of
January 2, 2004, totaled $386 million, the majority of which were
requested by federal, state, or local governments related to our
timeshare and lodging operations and self-insurance programs.

Third parties have severally indemnified us for guarantees by
us of leases with minimum annual payments of approximately
$78 million, as well as real estate taxes and other changes associ-
ated with the leases.

Litigation and Arbitration
CTF/HPI arbitration and litigation. On April 8, 2002, we ini-
tiated an arbitration proceeding against CTF Hotel Holdings,
Inc. (CTF) and its affiliate, Hotel Property Investments (B.V.I.)
Ltd. (HPI), in connection with a dispute over procurement issues
for certain Renaissance hotels and resorts that we manage for
CTF and HPIL On April 12, 2002, CTF filed a lawsuit in U.S.
District Court in Delaware against us and Avendra L.L.C., alleg-
ing that, in connection with procurement at 20 of those hotels,
we engaged in improper acts of self-dealing, and claiming breach
of fiduciary, contractual and other duties; fraud; misrepresenta-
tion; and violations of the RICO and the Robinson-Patman
Acts. CTF seeks various remedies, including a stay of the arbi-
tration proceedings against CTF and unspecified actual, treble
and punitive damages. The district court enjoined the arbitration
with respect to CTF, but granted our request to stay the court
proceedings pending the resolution of the arbitration with respect
to HPI. Both parties have appealed that ruling. The arbitration
panel is scheduled to begin hearing the matter on April 6, 2004.
Strategic Hotel litigation. On August 20, 2002, several
direct or indirect subsidiaries of Strategic Hotel Capital, L.L.C.
(Strategic) filed suit against us in the Superior Court of Los
Angeles County, California, in a dispute related to the manage-
ment, procurement, and rebates related to three California hotels
that we manage for Strategic. Strategic alleges that we misused
confidential information related to the hotels, improperly allo-
cated corporate overhead to the hotels, engaged in improper self-
dealing with regard to procurement and rebates, and failed to
disclose information related to the above to Strategic. Strategic
also claims breach of contract, breach of fiduciary and other
duties, unfair and deceptive business practices, unfair competi-
tion, and other related causes of action. Strategic seeks various
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remedies, including unspecified compensatory and exemplary
damages, and a declaratory judgment terminating our manage-
ment agreements. We have filed a cross complaint alleging a
breach of Strategic’s covenant not to sue, a breach of the
covenant of good faith and fair dealing, breach of an agreement
to arbitrate, and a breach of the California unfair competition
statute. The case is currently in discovery, and the trial is set for
January 24, 2005.

We believe that CTF, HPI and Strategic’s claims against us
are without merit, and we intend to vigorously defend against
them. However, we cannot assure you as to the outcome of the
arbitration or the related litigation; nor can we currently estimate
the range of potential losses to the Company.

20. BUSINESS SEGMENTS

We are a diversified hospitality company with operations in five
business segments:

= Full-Service Lodging, which includes Marriott Hotels &

Resorts, The Ritz-Carlton, Renaissance Hotels & Resorts, and

Ramada International;
®  Select-Service Lodging, which includes Courtyard, Fairfield

Inn and SpringHill Suites;
= Extended-Stay Lodging, which includes Residence Inn,

TownePlace Suites, Marriott ExecuStay and Marriott

Executive Apartments;
= Timeshare, which includes the development, marketing,

operation and ownership of timeshare properties under the

Marriott Vacation Club International, The Ritz-Carlton Club,

Horizons by Marriott Vacation Club International and

Marriott Grand Residence Club brands; and
= Synthetic Fuel, which includes our interest in the operation

of coal-based synthetic fuel production facilities. Our syn-

thetic fuel operation generated a tax benefit and credits of
$245 million and $208 million, respectively, for the years
ended January 2, 2004, and January 3, 2003. Included in the
year ended January 2, 2004, are tax benefits and tax credits
of $211 million and $34 million, respectively, which are allo-
cable to our joint venture partner and reflected in minority
interest in the consolidated statements of income.

In addition to the segments above, in 2002 we announced
our intent to sell, and subsequently did sell, our Senior Living
Services business segment and exited our Distribution Services
business segment.

We evaluate the performance of our segments based prima-
rily on the results of the segment without allocating corporate
expenses, interest expense, and interest income. With the excep-
tion of our synthetic fuel segment, we do not allocate income
taxes to our segments. As timeshare note sales are an integral
part of the timeshare business, we include timeshare note sale
gains in our timeshare segment results and we allocate other
gains as well as equity income (losses) from our joint ventures
to each of our segments.

We have aggregated the brands and businesses presented
within each of our segments considering their similar economic
characteristics, types of customers, distribution channels, and the
regulatory business environment of the brands and operations
within each segment.

Revenues
($ in mullions) 2003 2002 2001
Full-Service $5,876 $5,508 $5,260
Select-Service 1,000 967 864
Extended-Stay 557 600 635
Timeshare 1,279 1,147 1,009
Total lodging 8,712 8,222 7,768
Synthetic fuel 302 193 -
$9,014 $8,415 $7,768
Income from Continuing Operations
($ in millions) 2003 2002 2001
Full-Service $ 407 $ 397 $ 294
Select-Service 99 130 145
Extended-Stay 47 3) 55
Timeshare 149 183 147
Total lodging financial results (pretax) 702 707 641
Synthetic fuel (after tax) 96 74 -
Unallocated corporate expenses (132) (126) (157)
Interest income, provision for
loan losses and interest expense 12 24 (63)
Income taxes (excluding synthetic fuel) (202) (240) (152)
$ 476 $ 439 $ 269
Equity in Earnings (Losses) of Equity Method Investees
($ in mullions) 2003 2002 2001
Full-Service $ 8 $5 $(11)
Select-Service (22) 8) 5
Timeshare 4 2) 1)
Synthetic fuel 10 - -
Corporate 1 1) (7)
$ (7) $(6) $(14)
Depreciation and Amortization
(8 in millions) 2003 2002 2001
Full-Service $ 54 $ 54 $ 81
Select-Service 10 9 10
Extended-Stay 10 10 16
Timeshare 49 38 34
"Total lodging 123 111 141
Corporate 29 31 37
Synthetic fuel 8 8 -
Discontinued operations = 37 44
$160 $187 $222
Assets
(8 in mallions) 2003 2002 2001
Full-Service $3,436 $3,423 $3,394
Select-Service 833 771 931
Extended-Stay 286 274 366
Timeshare 2,350 2,225 2,109
Total lodging 6,905 6,693 6,800
Corporate 1,189 911 1,369
Synthetic fuel 83 59 49
Discontinued operations = 633 889
$8,177 $8,296 $9,107
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Equity Method Investments
(8 in millions) 2003 2002 2001
Full-Service $310 $327 $138
Select-Service 95 114 109
Timeshare 22 13 19
Total lodging 427 454 266
Corporate 41 21 15
$468 $475 $281
Goodwill
(8 in millions) 2003 2002 2001
Full-Service $851 $851 $851
Select-Service — — -
Extended-Stay 72 72 126
Timeshare - — —
$923 $923 $977
Capital Expenditures
(8 in mallions) 2003 2002 2001
Full-Service $ 93 $138 $186
Select-Service 38 23 140
Extended-Stay 3 39 52
Timeshare 45 36 75
Total lodging 179 236 453
Corporate 16 20 30
Synthetic fuel — 7 49
Discontinued operations 15 29 28
$210 $292 $560

Segment expenses include selling expenses directly related to
the operations of the businesses, aggregating $453 million in 2003,
$423 million in 2002 and $388 million in 2001. Over 90 percent
of the selling expenses are related to our Timeshare segment.

The consolidated financial statements include the following
related to international operations: sales of $563 million in 2003,
$450 million in 2002 and $477 million in 2001; financial results
of $102 million in 2003, $94 million in 2002 and $42 million in
2001; and fixed assets of $395 million in 2003, $308 million in
2002 and $230 million in 2001. No individual country other
than the United States constitutes a material portion of our sales,
financial results or fixed assets.

21. 2001 RESTRUCTURING COSTS AND
OTHER CHARGES

Restructuring Costs and Other Charges

The Company experienced a significant decline in demand for hotel
rooms in the aftermath of the September 11, 2001, attacks in New
York and Washington, D.C., and the subsequent dramatic down-
turn in the economy. This decline resulted in reduced management
and franchise fees, cancellation of development projects, and antici-
pated losses associated with guarantees and loans. In 2001, we
responded by implementing certain companywide cost-saving meas-
ures, although we did not significantly change the scope of our
operations. As a result of our restructuring plan, in the fourth quar-
ter of 2001 we recorded pre-tax restructuring costs of $62 million,
including (1) $15 million in severance costs; (2) $19 million prima-
rily associated with a loss on a sublease of excess space arising from

the reduction in personnel; and (3) $28 million related to the write-
off of capitalized costs relating to development projects no longer
deemed viable. We also incurred $142 million of other charges
including (1) $85 million related to reserves for guarantees and
loan losses; (2) $12 million related to accounts receivable reserves;
(3) $13 million related to the write-down of properties held for sale;
and (4) $32 million related to the impairment of technology related
investments and other write-offs. We have provided below detailed
information related to the restructuring costs and other charges,
which were recorded in the fourth quarter of 2001 as a result of
the economic downturn and the unfavorable lodging environment.

2001 Restructuring Costs

SEVERANCE

Our restructuring plan resulted in the reduction of approxi-
mately 1,700 employees across our operations (the majority of
which were terminated by December 28, 2001). In 2001, we
recorded a workforce reduction charge of $15 million related
primarily to severance and fringe benefits. The charge did not
reflect amounts billed out separately to owners for property-level
severance costs. In addition, we delayed filling vacant positions
and reduced staff hours.

FACILITIES EXIT COSTS

As a result of the workforce reduction and delay in filling vacant
positions, we consolidated excess corporate facilities in 2001. At
that time, we recorded a restructuring charge of approximately
$14 million primarily related to lease terminations and noncance-
lable lease costs in excess of estimated sublease income. In 2001,
we also recorded a $5 million charge for lease terminations
resulting from cancellations of leased units by our corporate
apartment business, primarily in downtown New York City.

DEVELOPMENT CANCELLATIONS AND ELIMINATION OF
PRODUCT LINE

We incur certain costs associated with the development of prop-
erties, including legal costs, the cost of land and planning and
design costs. We capitalize these costs as incurred, and they
become part of the cost basis of the property once it is devel-
oped. As a result of the dramatic downturn in the economy in
the aftermath of the September 11, 2001, attacks, we decided to
cancel development projects that were no longer deemed viable.
As a result, in 2001, we expensed $28 million of previously capi-
talized costs.

2001 Other Charges

RESERVES FOR GUARANTEES AND LOAN LOSSES

We issue guarantees to lenders and other third parties in connec-
tion with financing transactions and other obligations. We also
advance loans to some owners of properties that we manage. As
a result of the downturn in the economy, certain hotels experi-
enced significant declines in profitability and the owners were
not able to meet debt service obligations to the Company or, in
some cases, to other third-party lending institutions. As a result,
in 2001, based upon cash flow projections, we expected to make
fundings under certain guarantees that we did not expect to
recover, and we expected that several of the loans made by us
would not be repaid according to their original terms. Due to
these expected non-recoverable guarantee fundings and expected
loan losses, we recorded charges of $85 million in the fourth
quarter of 2001.
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ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE - BAD DEBTS
In the fourth quarter of 2001, we reserved $12 million of accounts receivable which we deemed uncollectible following an analysis of
these accounts, generally as a result of the unfavorable hotel operating environment.

ASSET IMPAIRMENTS

In 2001, we recorded a charge related to the impairment of an investment in a technology-related joint venture ($22 million), losses

on the anticipated sale of three lodging properties ($13 million), write-offs of investments in management contracts and other assets

($8 million), and the write-off of capitalized software costs arising from a decision to change a technology platform ($2 million).
The following table summarizes our remaining restructuring liability:

Charges
Restructuring Costs Cash Payments (Reversed) Restructuring
and Other Charges Made in the Accrued in the Costs and Other
Liability at Year Ended Year Ended Charges Liability at

(8 in mallions) January 3, 2003 January 2, 2004 January 2, 2004 January 2, 2004
Severance $ 2 $ D $(1) $ -
Facilities exit costs 11 2) 4 13
Total restructuring costs 13 3) 3 13
Reserves for guarantees and loan losses 21 (14) _ 7
Total $34 $(17) $3 $20

As a result of the workforce reduction and delay in filling vacant positions, we consolidated excess corporate facilities in 2001. At
that time, we recorded a restructuring charge of approximately $14 million primarily related to lease terminations and noncancelable
lease costs in excess of estimated sublease income. The liability is paid over the lease term which ends in 2012; and as of January 2,
2004, the balance was $13 million. In 2003, we revised our estimates to reflect the impact of higher property taxes, the delay in filling
excess space and a reduction in the expected sublease rate we are able to charge, resulting in an increase in the liability of $4 million.

The remaining liability related to fundings under guarantees will be substantially paid by January 2005. The amounts related to the
space reduction and resulting lease expense due to the consolidation of facilities will be paid over the respective lease terms through 2012.

The following tables provide further detail on the 2001 charges:

2001 Operating Income Impact

Unallocated
Full- Select- Extended- Corporate
(8 in millions) Service Service Stay Timeshare Expenses Total
Severance $7 $1 $1 $2 $4 $ 15
Facilities exit costs - - 5 - 14 19
Development cancellations and elimination of product line 19 4 5 - - 28
Total restructuring costs 26 5 11 2 18 62
Reserves for guarantees and loan losses 30 3 3 - - 36
Accounts receivable - bad debts 11 1 - - - 12
Write-down of properties held for sale 9 4 - - - 13
Impairment of technology-related investments and other 8 - 2 - 22 32
Total $84 $13 $16 $2 $40 $155
2001 Interest Income and Provision for Loan Losses Impact
Provision for Interest
(8 in millions) Loan Losses Income Total
Reserves for guarantees and loan losses $43 $6 $49

In addition, in 2001, we recorded restructuring charges of $62 million and other charges of $5 million now reflected in our losses
from discontinued operations. The restructuring liability related to discontinued operations was $3 million as of December 28, 2001, and
$1 million as of January 3, 2003. We had no remaining restructuring liability related to discontinued operations as of January 2, 2004.
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22. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Related Party Income Statement Data

We have equity method investments in entities that own hotels ($ in millions) 2003 2002 2001
where we provide management and/or franchise services for Base management fees $ 56 $ 48 $ 48
which we receive a fee. In addition, in some cases we provide Incentive management fees 4 4 4
loans, preferred equity, or guarantees to these entities. The fol- Cost reimbursements 699 557 559
lowing tables present financial data resulting from transactions Other revenue 28 2% 928
with these related parties:
Total Revenue $787 $635 $639
General, administrative and other $ (11 $ (1) $ (15
Reimbursed costs (699) (557)  (659)
Interest income 77 66 51
Provision for loan losses 2) 5) -
Related Party Balance Sheet Data
($ in millions) 2003 2002
Due to equity method investees $ @ $
Due from equity method investees $623 $532
Quarterly Financial Data — Unaudited
Fiscal Year 2003">*
First Second Third Fourth Fiscal
(8 in millions, except per share data) Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter Year
Sales® $2,023 $2,016 $2,109 $2,866 $9,014
Operating income?® 58 68 90 161 377
Income from continuing operations, after taxes and minority interest 87 126 93 170 476
Discontinued operations, after tax 29 1) (1) (1) 26
Net income 116 125 92 169 502
Diluted earnings per share from continuing operations .36 .52 .38 .69 1.94
Diluted earnings (losses) per share from discontinued operations 12 (-01) (-01) - A1
Diluted earnings per share $ .48 $ .51 $ .37 $ .69 $ 2.05
Fiscal Year 2002"2*
First Second Third Fourth Fiscal
(8 in millions, except per share data) Q}larter anrter Q}la.rter Q}larter Year
Sales® $1,795 $2,019 $1,908 $2,693 $8,415
Operating income® 109 100 75 37 321
Income from continuing operations, after taxes and minority interest 82 127 114 116 439
Discontinued operations, after tax - 2 (11) (153) (162)
Net income (loss) 82 129 103 (37) 277
Diluted earnings per share from continuing operations .32 49 45 47 1.74
Diluted earnings (losses) per share from discontinued operations - .01 (-04) (.62) (.64)
Diluted earnings (losses) per share $ .32 $ .50 $ 41 $ (15 $ 1.10

1 Fiscal year 2003 included 52 weeks and fiscal year 2002 included 53 weeks.

2 The quarters consisted of 12 weeks, except the fourth quarter of 2003, which consisted of 16 weeks, and the fourth quarter of 2002, which consisted of 17 weeks.
3 We have adjusted our current year and prior year balances to exclude the Senior Living Services and Distribution Services discontinued operations.

4 The sum of the earnings per share for the four quarters differs from annual earnings per share due to the required method of computing the weighted average shares in interim periods.
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Selected Historical Financial Data — Unaudited

The following table presents a summary of selected historical financial data for the Company derived from our financial statements as

of and for the five fiscal years ended January 2, 2004.

Since the information in this table is only a summary and does not provide all of the information contained in our financial state-
ments, including the related notes, you should read “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of

Operations” and our Consolidated Financial Statements.

Fiscal Year?
(8 in millions, except per share amounts) 2003 2002 2001 2000 1999
Income Statement Data:
Revenues' $9,014 $8,415 $7,768 $7,911 $7,026
Operating income' 377 321 420 762 621
Income from continuing operations 476 439 269 490 399
Discontinued operations 26 (162) (33) (11) 1
Net income $ 502 $ 277 $ 236 $ 479 $ 400
Per Share Data:
Diluted earnings per share from continuing operations $ 1.94 $ 1.74 $ 1.05 $ 1.93 $ 1.51
Diluted earnings (loss) per share from discontinued operations a1 (-64) (-13) (-04) -
Diluted earnings per share $ 2.05 $ 1.10 $ .92 $ 1.89 $ 1.51
Cash dividends declared per share 295 275 255 235 215
Balance Sheet Data (at end of year):
Total assets $8,177 $8,296 $9,107 $8,237 $7,324
Long-term debt' 1,391 1,553 2,708 1,908 1,570
Shareholders’ equity 3,838 3,573 3,478 3,267 2,908
Other Data:
Base management fees' 388 379 372 383 352
Incentive management fees' 109 162 202 316 268
Franchise fees! 245 232 220 208 180
1 Balances reflect our Senior Living Services and Distribution Services busi as discontinued op
2 All fiscal years included 52 weeks, except for 2002, which included 53 weeks.
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Management'’s Report

Management is responsible for the integrity and objectivity of the consolidated financial statements and other financial information pre-
sented in this annual report. In meeting this responsibility, we maintain a highly developed system of internal controls, policies and
procedures, including an internal auditing function that continually evaluates the adequacy and effectiveness of our control system.
Management believes this system provides reasonable assurance that transactions are properly authorized and recorded to adequately
safeguard our assets and to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in
the United States.

The consolidated financial statements have been audited by Ernst & Young LLP, independent auditors. Their report expresses an
informed judgment as to whether management’s financial statements, considered in their entirety, fairly present our financial position,
operating results and cash flows in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States.

The Board of Directors pursues its responsibility for the financial statements through its Audit Committee, composed of five direc-
tors not otherwise employed by the company. The committee meets a minimum of four times during the year with the independent
auditors, representatives of management and the internal auditors to review the scope and results of the internal and external audits,
the accounting principles applied in financial reporting, and financial and operational controls. The independent auditors and internal
auditors have unrestricted access to the Audit Committee, with or without the presence of management.

Arne M. Sorenson
Executive Vice President, Chief Financial Qfficer and President — Continental European Lodging

Report of Independent Auditors

To the Shareholders of Marriott International, Inc.:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheet of Marriott International, Inc. as of January 2, 2004 and January 3, 2003,
and the related consolidated statements of income, cash flows, comprehensive income and shareholders’ equity for each of the three fis-
cal years in the period ended January 2, 2004. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States. Those standards require
that we plan and perform an audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstate-
ment. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An
audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the
overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the consolidated financial position of
Marriott International, Inc. as of January 2, 2004 and January 3, 2003, and the consolidated results of its operations and its cash flows
for each of the three fiscal years in the period ended January 2, 2004 in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in
the United States.

As discussed in the notes to the consolidated financial statements, in 2002 the Company adopted Statement of Financial Accounting

Standards No. 142, “Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets.”
St + LLP

McLean, Virginia
February 3, 2004
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Corporate Information

CORPORATE HEADQUARTERS
Marriott International, Inc.
Marriott Drive

Washington, D.C. 20058
301/380-3000

Internet: www.marriott.com

COMMON STOCK LISTINGS
The company’s Class A common stock (ticker symbol: MAR) is
listed on the New York Stock Exchange and other exchanges.

SHAREHOLDERS OF RECORD
47,202 at January 30, 2004

REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER AGENT

Shareholder inquiries regarding stock transfers, dividend pay-
ments, address changes, enrollment in the company’s direct
investment plan, lost stock certificates, or other stock account
matters should be directed to:

EquiServe Trust Company, N.A.
66 Brooks Drive

Braintree, Mass. 02184
800/311-4816 (U.S. and Canada)
781/575-2720 (International)
Internet: www.equiserve.com

INVESTOR RELATIONS
For information, call: 301/380-6500
Internet: www.marriott.com/investor

INDEPENDENT PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS
Ernst & Young LLP
McLean, Va.

ANNUAL MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS
April 30, 2004 — 10:30 a.m.

JW Marriott Hotel

1331 Pennsylvania Avenue, N.W.
Washington, D.C.

COMMON STOCK PRICES AND DIVIDENDS

Dividends
Stock Price Declared
High Low Per Share
2003 - First quarter................ $34.89  $28.55 $0.070
- Second quarter............ 40.44 31.23 0.075
- Third quarter....... ... 41.59 37.66 0.075
- Fourth quarter............. 47.20 40.04 0.075
2002 - First quarter................. $45.49  $34.60 $0.065
- Second quarter............ 46.45 37.25 0.070
- Third quarter............... 40.25 30.44 0.070
- Fourth quarter............. 36.62 26.25 0.070
TELEPHONE NUMBERS
For reservations or information, call:
Marriott Hotels & ReSOTES ...veeveeveevieeieieieieciecieeeae 800/228-9290
Marriott Conference Centers.........ccceevevuerrerrerennenne 800/453-0309
Renaissance Hotels & Resorts .... 800/468-3571
The Ritz-Carlton Hotel Company, L.L.C... 800/241-3333
Bulgari Hotels & Resorts ........coeeeeviniinncne 301/547-4900
JW Marriott Hotels & Resorts ... 800/228-9290
Courtyard............... 800/321-2211
SpringHill Suites ... 888/287-9400
Fairfield Inni......ccoooeveieieiiieieeeeeeeee ... 800/228-2800
Ramada International Hotels & Resorts................. 800/854-7854
Residence Inn......ceeeeeieieiiciiciceceeeeeeeeee 800/331-3131
TownePlace SUItes......cevverrierieieieieieieeeeeee e 800/257-3000
Marriott Executive Apartments ...........ococevuevevecunnn 800/800-5744
Marriott ExecuStay ........cccovvvueriiiicierninicieiniccnnns 888/840-7829
Marriott Vacation Club International..................... 800/332-1333
Horizons by Marriott Vacation Club...................... 888/220-2086
Marriott Grand Residence Club........ccccceevevienuennene. 866/204-7263
The Ritz-Carlton Club .......ccocceeieiecieieieeieeeeee 800/941-4386
LODGING DEVELOPMENT INQUIRIES
North America
Full-Service....ovoveieieiececieeeeeeeeeeeee 301/380-3200
Select-Service and Extended-Stay............cc....... 301/380-5237
Latin AMETICA ..veeveeveeeieieieieeeeeeeeeeeeiee e 301/380-5290
Europe, the Middle East and Africa................. 011-411-723-5100
Asia/Pacific....coueceiiiieeeeeceeeeeee 011-852-2521-1848

© Marriott International, Inc. 2004. All rights reserved.
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